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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
India Pesticides Limited

The directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report of the company together
with the Audited accounts for the period ended on 31 March, 2020.

Financial Results:
(All amount in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Current Year
(for the Period
2019-20) (in Rs.)

Current Year
(for the Period
2018-19) (in Rs.)

Total Income

4,897.27

3,460.42

Less-Expenditure during the year

3884.37

2776.09

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation, Interest &
tax

1012.9

684.33

Less- Depreciation

50.69

39.58

Less- Interest

28.51

33.76

Less: Exceptional Items

Less- Provision For Tax & Adjustments

225.86

171.79

Net Profit/(Loss)

707.83

439.20

State of Company’s Affairs

During the year, the Company has earned a net profit of Rs. 707.83 million as against

previous year’s profit of Rs. 439.20 million.




Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies

The Company has no Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

Material Changes and Commitments during the Year

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report during the year under
review, as required under Section 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls - Rule 8(5)(viii) of The Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014

The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate system of internal controls over
financial reporting and such internal controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March, 2020.

Change in the Nature of Business

During the year, there was no material change in nature of business of the company.

Impact of COVID 19

Financial Year 2019-20 has been challenging, particularly in later part of the year due to

COVID-19 Outbreak. Our focus has been safety of our people, Protecting Supply Line,
Supply demand, contributing the society & optimizing cost and cash.

Extract of Annual Return

The Extract of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, in Form
MGT-9 is annexed herewith for your kind perusal and information. (Annexure: 1)

Dividend
Your directors recommend final dividend of Rs. 110 per equity share of face value of Rs. 100
each for financial year ended on 31%t March, 2020.

Reserves & Surplus
Current Year’s profit of Rs.707.83 million has been included under the head Retained
Earnings during the year under review.




Directors& Key Managerial Personnel
Term of Mr. Pranav Agarwal, Independent director of the company expired on
29.09.2020. He was appointed as Independent director for a term of 5 years.

Mr. Anand Swarup Agarwal was appointed as Additional Director of the Company on
10.09.2020 and regularized as a Chairman and Non Executive Director of the Company
in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 06.10.2020

Mr. Ajeet Pandey was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer wef
01.10.2020.

Mr. Satya Prakash Gupta was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company wef
01.11.2020.

Mr. Rajendra Singh Sharma, Whole-time Director shall retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment.

Changes in Share Capital, if any
There is no change in the share capital of the Company during the year under review.

Auditors and Report thereon

During the year under review, M/s R K Chari & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm

Registration No. 000481C), resigned from the post of Statutory Auditors of the Company.

Thereafter, the company appointed M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 301051E) as Statutory Auditors at Extra Ordinary General Meeting held
on 13.08.2020 to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the
Financial year 2019-20.

During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section
143(12) of the Companies Act 2013; therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under
Section 134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013.




Comments by Board on Auditors’ Report:
The Auditors’ report read alongwith notes to accounts is self-explanatory and therefore

does not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Compliance under Secretarial Standards:
The Company is in compliance of all Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretary of India from time to time.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments
Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes to Financial Statements.

Related Party Transactions
The related party transactions entered into during the year are detailed in Note No. 36 of
the Balance Sheet.

Deposits
1. Accepted during the year: NIL

2. Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year: NIL

3. If there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest
thereon during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total amount
involved:

a. At the beginning of the year: NIL
b. Maximum during the year: NIL
c. At the end of the year: NIL

Deposits not in compliance with Chapter V of the Act
The Company has not accepted any amount covered under the provisions of Section 73
of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

Directors Responsibility Statement:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 your
directors state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;




(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors, had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received declaration from all independent directors (within the
prescribed time limit) in accordance with the provisions of Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Audit Committee

According to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company’s Audit Committee
comprised of three directors as on 31.03.2020. The board accepted the recommendations
of the Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee as on 31.03.2020 is as
under:

Name of the Director Position held in Category of the Director
the Committee

Mr. Rajendra Singh Sharma | Chairman Executive /Non Independent Director

Mr. Pranav Agarwal Member Non Executive /Independent Director

Ms. Shweta Agarwal Member Non Executive /Independent Director

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As per the Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company’s Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprises of three Non-executive Directors. The table sets out
the composition of the Committee as on 31.03.2020:




Name of the Director Position held in the Category of the Director
Committee

Mr. Pranav Agarwal Chairman Non Executive/ Independent
Director

Mr. Govind Singh Mehta Member Non Executive/ Non
Independent Director

Ms. Shweta Agarwal Member Non Executive /Independent
Director

Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out
evaluation of every Director’s performance.

. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

. The Committee shall ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully and relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

. The Committee shall ensure that the remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the

working of the company and its goals.

. Regularly review the Human Resource function of the Company and reassess the
adequacy of this charter periodically and recommend any proposed changes to
the Board for approval from time to time

. Discharge such other function(s) or exercise such power(s) as may be delegated to
the Committee by the Board from time to time and make reports to the Board as
appropriate.

Such other work and policy, related and incidental to the objectives of the
committee as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made there
under.




Remuneration Policy

Remuneration to Executive Directors:

The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved by Board in Board meeting, subject to the
subsequent approval of the shareholders at the General Meeting and such other
authorities, as may be required. The remuneration is decided after considering various
factors such as qualification, experience, performance, responsibilities shouldered,
industry standards as well as financial position of the Company.

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fees and
Commission. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for each meeting of the
Board and Committee of Directors attended by them.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has a Risk Management Policy to identify, evaluate business risks and
opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on
the business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage.

The Risk Management Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s
website.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The composition of CSR Committee as on 31.03.2020:
. Mr. Rajendra Singh Sharma, Chairman
. Mr. Ashok Kumar Gupta, Member
. Mr. Govind Singh Mehta, Member
. Ms. Shweta Agarwal, Member

The company was required to spend Rs.11.03 millon but has made expenditure of Rs.4.64
millon towards CSR activities and the balance amount shall be spent in phased
manner as per the requirement of project.

The Annual Report on CSR initiatives is enclosed herewith as Annexure 2.




Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo:

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo are as follows:

A) Conservation of energy:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Power and Fuel Consumption

1. Electricity
Purchased Units (kwh) 20316692 Units 18457736 Units
Total Amount (in Rs.) 185892178.47 147142168
Unit Rate (in Rs.) 9.15 7.97
2. Own Generation (on Diesel)
Units Generated 2259208.90 Units 1201578 Units
Total Amount (Rs.) 37803879.58 21698776
Unit Cost (Rs.) 16.73 18.06

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
The products manufactured by the company are material intensive. However,
consistent efforts are being made for identifying the potential for energy
saving.

(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:
Company is exploring possibility of roof top Solar Energy System.

(B) Technology absorption:

i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption:
All process technologies are developed in-house at the R&D. The R&D is
equipped with instruments and equipments to generate products from gram scale
to kilo scale. After completely studying the process in pilot plant, standard
operating procedures are developed for implementation in the plant.
The benefits derived:
1. Reduction in cost of manufacturing
2. Commercialization of new product
In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year):
No technology has been imported by the Company.
iv.  The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Rs.16.32 million.




(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

a. Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year: Rs.2,968.31
million; and

b. Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows: Rs. 822.31
million.

Details of Board Meeting Held during the Year

Number of Board Meetings held during the year: 08

Date of Board No. of directors present

Meeting
01.04.2019
24.04.2019
03.05.2019
12.06.2019
21.08.2019
23.09.2019
05.12.2019
09.01.2020

Q1 |(O1 Q1 |Q1|Q1|C1 (U1 U1

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there
under, the Company has appointed M/s. GSK & Associates, Company Secretaries to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed
as Annexure 3 and forms an integral part of this report.

There is no secretarial audit qualification for the year under review.

Internal Auditor

Mr. Awadh Narain Shukla, Chartered Accountant, was appointed as the Internal
Auditor of the Company for the FY 2020-21.

Cost Audit

Mr.Manoj Mishra, Cost Accountant, was appointed as the Cost Auditor of the Company
for the FY 2020-21




Significant And Material Orders Passed By The Regulators Or Courts Or Tribunals
Impacting The Going Concern Status And Company’s Operations In Future

The Company has not received any order passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s operations in future.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set
up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off
during the year2019-20.

No. of complaints received NIL
| No. of complaints disposed off | NIL

Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation to the continued co-operation
received from the Banks, Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and
Shareholders during the year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record
their deep sense of appreciation for the committed service of the Executives, staff and
Workers of the Company.

By the order of the Board
For India Pesticides Limited

[

Ashok Kumar Gupta Rajendra Singh Sharma
Wholetime Director Wholetime Director
DIN:00543688 DIN:02487797
Address:-12/568 Sector 12 Near, Address:-E-2866, Rajaji
Water Tank Indira Nagar Puram Avas Colony
Lucknow -226016 Lucknow -226017

Date: 25.11.2020

Place: Lucknow




Annexure 1
FORM NO. MGT.9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31t March, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i. CIN: U24112UP1984PLC006894
ii. Registration Date: 13.12.1984
iii. Name of the Company: India Pesticides Limited.
iv. Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Company limited by Shares /
Indian Non- Government Company
. Address of the Registered office and contact details: 35-A Civil Lines, Bareilly
i. Whether listed company: No
ii. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent:

KFin Technologies Private Limited (Formerly known as “Karvy Fintech Private
Limited”)

Address: Selenium Tower-B Plot 31 & 32, Gachibowli Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Hyderabad 500032 Telangana, India

Contact Details: +91 40 6716 2222

E-Mail- ipl.ipo@kfintech.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated:-

SI. | Name and Description of | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
No. | main products/ services Product/ service | of the company

1 Manufacture of Pesticides 2021 92.2




PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

There is no Holding, Subsidiary or Associate Company

Name

the

Address of

Company

And | CIN/ GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary
/

Associate

Applicabl
e Section

NA

NA

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of

Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares
beginning of the year -01.04.2019

held at

the

No. of Shares held at the end
of the year 31.03.2020

%
Change
during
the year

Physical

%
Total

Shares

of Physi-
cal

0/o Of
Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a. Individual/ HUF

127971

127971

127971

127971

b. Central Govt.

c. State Govt. (s)

d. Bodies Corp.

e. Banks/FI

f. Any Other..

Sub-total (A) (1)

127971

127971

127971

127971

(2) Foreign




a. NRIs — Individuals

b. Other — Individuals

c. Bodies Corp.

d. Banks / FI

e. Any Other....

Sub-total (A)(2)

Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A)(D+(A)(2)

127971

127971

127971

127971

B. Public
Shareholding
(1) Institutions
a. Mutual Funds
. Banks/FI
. Central Govt
. State Govt(s)
. Venture Capital
Funds
. Insurance
Companies
. FlIs
. Foreign

Venture Capital
Funds
i. Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1)

(2) Non-Institutions

a. Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b. Individuals




i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

c. Others (specify)

190354

190354

190354

190354

Sub-total (B)(2)

190354

190354

190354

190354

Total
Shareholding
(B)() + (B)(2)

Public
(B)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

318325

318325

318325

318325

ii. Shareholding of Promoters

. |Shareholder's

Name the year

Shareholding at the beginning of

Share holding at the end of

the year

No.
Shares

of

% of total
Shares of
the

company

%of Shares
Pledged/
encumber-
ed to total
shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of
the

company

%of
Shares
Pledged/
encumber-
ed to total
shares

% change
in share
holding
during
the year

Anand Swarup 127971

Agarwal

127971




iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): No Change

Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year | during the year

No. of | % of total | No.  of | % of total shares
shares shares of | shares of the company
the
company

At the beginning of
the year

Date wise Increase/
Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during
the year specifying the
reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bon
us/ sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs): As per List Attached

SIL. Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year | during the year

For Each of the | No. of | % of | No. of | % of total
Top 10 | shares total shares shares of the
Shareholders shares of company

the
company

At the beginning
of the year

Date wise
Increase/Decrease

in Share holding
during the year




Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year | during the year

For Each of the | No. of | % of | No. of | % of total
Top 10 | shares total shares shares of the
Shareholders shares of company

the
company

specifying the
reasons for
increase/decrease
(e.g. allotment/
transfer/
bonus/sweat
equity etc):

At the End of the
year (or on the
date of separation,
if separated during
the year)

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel : NIL

Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year

For Each of | No. of | % of total | No. of | % of total shares
the shares shares  of | shares of the company
Directors the

and KMP company
At the
beginning of
the year

Date  wise
Increase /
Decrease in
Share
holding
during the
year




V.

Shareholding
beginning of the year

at the

Cumulative
during the year

Shareholding

specifying
the reasons
for increase
/  decrease
(e.g.
allotment /
transfer /
bonus/
sweat
equity etc):

At the End
of the year

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due

for payment

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year

Principal Amount

493837017

112000000

505837017

Interest due but not
paid

Interest accrued but
not due

iii)

5000547

5000547

Total (i+ii+iii)

493837017

117000547

510837564

Change in Indebtedness

during the financial year

e Addition

5789617

5789617

e Reduction

(336144292)

(336144292)

Net Change

(336144292)

5789617

(330354675)




Indebtedness at the end of

the financial year

i) Principal Amount 157681159 112000000 269381159

ii) Interest due but not
paid

iii) Interest accrued but 11566 10790164 11101730
not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 157692725 122790164 280482889

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ | Total
no. Manager Amount
Rajendra Ashok Kumar
Singh Gupta
Sharma

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions | 0.60
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:




Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

Pranav Shweta
Agarwal Agarwal

Independent Directors

¢ Fee for attending board | 0.04 0.04
committee meetings

¢ Commission

* Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive | Govind Singh Mehta

Directors

e Fee for attending board | 0.08
committee meetings

¢ Commission

* Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B) = (1 +2)

Total Managerial

Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD: NIL

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

no.

CEO Company | CFO
Secretary

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under




Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO

section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total




VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:NIL

| Authority
[RD/NCLT/ | m:

A, COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment

Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty |
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

By the order of the Board
For India Pesticides Limited

Ashok Kumar Gupta Rajendra Singh Sharma
Wholetime Director Wholetime Director
DIN:00543688 DIN:02487797
Address:-12/568 Sector 12 Near, Address:-E-2866, Rajaji
Water Tank Indira Nagar Puram Avas Colony
Lucknow -226016 Lucknow -226017

Date: 25.11.2020

Place: Lucknow




Annexure 2

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR INITIATIVES TO BE INCLUDED
IN THE BOARD REPORT BY QUALIFYING COMPANIES

1. Provide a brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy:

ix.

Health care: supporting various medical initiatives aiming at reducing mortality
rate of children, regular health checkups for poor including children in schools of
neighbouring regions, promoting preventive health care, etc.

Skill Development and Women Empowerment and vocational training
programmes for differently abled persons.

Promoting Education.

Promoting Sports through various events.

Good Agricultural Practices.

Model Village/Habitation Development- Co Community Development.
Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set
up by the Central Govt for socio economic development and relief and welfare of
the weaker sections of the society and women.

Rural Development Projects.

Protection of flora and fauna.

2. The composition of the CSR Committee: =~ Mr. Rajendra Singh Sharma
Mr. Govind Singh Mehta
Mr. Ashok Kumar Gupta
Ms. Shweta Agarwal
Average Net Profit of the company for last 3 financial years:Rs.55,12,92,661.3/-

Amount of CSR spent during the Year Rs. 46,35,704/-

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above):
Rs. 1,10,25,853.23/-

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 4,71,37,259.45/- (This
includes unspent amount of FY 2018-19 and 2017-18i.e. Rs. 2,48,08,722.17/-
and Rs. 1,13,02,684.05/-.)

(b) Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 4,25,01,555.45/-




(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year as detailed below:

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

()

(8)

CSR  Project
or activity
identified

Sector in
which  the
Project  is
covered

Projects or
programs:
(1)
al area
or others
(2) Spe
cify the
state and
district
where
projects
or
program
s were
underta
ken

Loc

Amount
outlay
(budget)
Project
or
progra

m wise

Amount spent
on the projects
or programs

Sub-heads:
(1)Direct
(2)Expenditure

on projects

or programs
(3)Overheads
Direct
Expenditure

Cumula
tive

expendi
ture up
to  the
reportin

g period

Amount
spent:
Direct
or
through
implem
enting
agency

Preventive
Health Care

Health Care

Lucknow

75,00,000

25,33,200

25,33,20
0

Directly

Promoting
Education
among
children and
women

Education

Lucknow

25,00,000

7,78,840

7,78,840

Directly

Rural
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

India Pesticides Limited

35-A Civil Lines, Bareilly -243001

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practice by INDIA PESTICIDES
LIMITED (CIN: U24112UP1984PLC006894) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the year ended on 31t March, 2020, proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2020

according to the provisions of:




The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder; (Not applicable to the company);

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder,
(Not applicable during the year);

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings, (Not applicable during the year);

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time;

(Not applicable to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 1992, (Not applicable to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009, (Not applicable to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; as amended from time to time.

(Not applicable to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and  The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 notified on 28" October, 2014 (Not applicable to the company);




The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client (Not applicable to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the company);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the company); and

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the

Act, Rules, Regulations, etc. mentioned above.

IL.
Insecticides Act, 1968
Industrial Employment Standing Order Act, 1946
Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
Payment of Wages Act, 1936
Minimum Wages Act, 1948
Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
Factories Act, 1948
Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946
Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923
Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1947
Employees’” Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
The Boilers Act, 1923
The Standards of Weight & Measurement Act, 1985

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

The Pesticides Management Bill, 2020




Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

The Petroleum Act, 1934

The Explosives Act, 1884

The Environment Protection Act, 1986

Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement)
Rules, 2016

The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991

Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules, 1989
Uttar Pradesh Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1962

The Foreign Trade (Regulation and Development) Act, 1992
Consumer Protection Act, 2019

The Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016

The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

Intellectual Property Laws

During the year under review the Company has filed periodical returns and has not
received any show cause notice and has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers on systems

and mechanism formed by the Company for compliance under the Act, Laws and

Regulations to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with respect to Secretarial Standards issued by The

Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists




for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while there has been no member dissenting from the
decisions arrived.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For GSK & Associates
(Company Secretaries)
FRN: P2014UP036000
Saket Sharma

Partner

(Membership No.: F4229)
(CP No.: 2565)

UDIN: F004229B001309819

Date: 25.11.2020

Place: Kanpur
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
India Pesticides Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of India Pesticides Limited ("the Company”),
which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2020, its profit {(including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the
Board report and Corporate Governance report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.



If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothingto report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We are also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.



e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) To evaluate
the effect of ant identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Reporting on Comparatives in case of First IND AS Financial Statements

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2019 and the
related transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2018 included in these financial
statements, have been prepared after adjusting previously issued financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS. The
previously issued financial statements were audited by predecessor auditor whose report for the years
ended 31st March 2019 and 31st March 2018 dated 21% August 2019 and 18" August, 2018 ,
respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Adjustments made to the
previously issued financial statements to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books and records.



()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2020 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial performance in
its financial statements. [Refer Note No.- 34 to financial statements]

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForLodha& Company

Chartered Accountants
FRN - 301051E

R. P. Baradiya
Partner

Membership No. 44101
UDIN:- 20044101AAABRX6830

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 11, 2020



Annexure "A” referred to in "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report to the members of India Pesticides Limited of even date:

Vi.

vii.

a. The Company has maintained proper records, showing full including quantitative details and
situation of Property,plant and equipment (fixed assets).

b. As explained to us, the Company has a phased program for physical verification of the
Property, Plant and equipment (fixed assets) for all locations. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable, considering the size of the Company and nature of its Property,
plant and equipment (fixed assets). Pursuant to the program of the physical verification of
fixed assets, physical verification of the assets has been carried out during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the Company.

a. The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

b. The procedures for the physical verification of inventory followed by management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

c. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
were not material and have been dealt with in books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not issued guarantees, given loans or issued any security and accordingly, reporting requirements
of paragraph 3(iv) of the Order, to that extent are not applicable to the Company. In respect of
investments made, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no deposits have been accepted by the
Company within the meaning of directives issued by RBI (Reserve Bank of India) and Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to rules
made by the central government for the maintenance of cost records under sub section 1 of
section 148 of the Act in respect of company’s products and services and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we
have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate and complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
custom duty, cess, excise duty, service tax, goods and services tax, value added tax, and other
material statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts



viii.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the
financial year for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
goods and services tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

Nature of Rs. in Period to which the | Forum where dispute is
Name of Statue - .
dues millions | amount relates pending
Uttar Pradesh Value | Value Added Commercial Tax
6.31 F.Y. 2016-17 Department, 1* Appellate,
Added Tax Tax
Uttar Pradesh

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The
Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and government or has
not issued any debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have
been applied for the purpose for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any monies
by way of Initial public offer or further public offer (Including debt instrument) during the year or
in the recent past.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by or
on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
books and records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for the managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act and all the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Accounting Standard (Refer Note 36 to the financial statements).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent past.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.




xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any

non-cash transactions prescribed under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons connected
with them during the year.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For Lodha & Company

Chartered Accountants
FRN - 301051E

R. P. Baradiya
Partner

Membership No. 44101
UDIN:- 20044101AAABRX6830
Place: Mumbai
Date: November 11, 2020



Annexure "B” referred to in "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report to the members of the India Pesticides Limited of even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the India Pesticides Limited
("the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AuditorsResponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect



the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management; (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the entity's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements and (4) also provide us reasonable
assurance by the internal auditors through their internal audit reports given to the organization from
time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, broadly in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential Component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Lodha & Company

Chartered Accountants
FRN — 301051E

R. P. Baradiya
Partner

Membership No. 44101
UDIN:- 20044101AAABRX6830

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 11, 2020



INDIA PESTICIDES LIMITED

Significant accounting policies and explanatory notes to Financial Statements

Company Profile

India Perticides Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated on 13" December 1984 and
having its registered office at Bareilly, Uttar Pradesh, India. The Company is engaged in ‘Agri
Chemicals’ business which primarily includes manufacture, sale and distribution of insecticides,
fungicides, herbicide and various other agrochemical products. The Company has its own
manufacturing site for agrochemical production at Sandila and Dewa Road in Uttar Pradesh.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1

Basis of Preparation and Transition to Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company are based on the principle of historical cost except for
certain financial assets and liabilities and defined benefit plan that are measured at fair value, and
are drawn up to comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the years presented in the financial
statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2018
being the date of transition to Ind AS.

The Financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost
convention except for the following that are measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind
AS:

Certain financial assets measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current or noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities.

1.2

Application of New Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has applied the Ind AS pronouncements pursuant to issuance of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has adopted Ind AS
116, Leases with modified retrospective approach to reporting period commencing from 1st
April, 2019.




1.3

Use of Estimates and Judgments

In preparing the Financial statements, the Management has to make certain assumptions and
estimates that may substantially impact the presentation of the Company’s financial position and/
or results of operations.

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the Financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions
and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable
under the existing circumstances. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates,
actual results may differ from these estimates. Changes in estimates are recorded in the periods in
which they become known.
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Summary of Significant accounting policies

(C))

Property, Plant & Equipment

Measurement at recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are
carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including
import duties and other nonrefundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the initial estimate of
decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant and
equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses directly attributable to new
manufacturing facility during its construction period are capitalized if the recognition criteria are
met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is
capitalized under relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are
met.

Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
and when incurred

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work
in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet
date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to consider the carrying value of all its
property, plant and equipment appearing in the financial statements prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and used the same as deemed cost in the
Opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2018.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the
Straight Line Method based on the useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.




The Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Factory Building 30 years
Plant & Machinery 20 years
R&D Equipment 20 years
Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Computers 3 years

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Dereognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the Derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized

(b)

Intangible Assets

Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets
arising on acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. Internally
generated intangibles including research cost are not capitalized and the related expenditure is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Company had elected to consider the carrying value of all its intangible assets appearing in
the financial statements prepare in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and used the same as deemed cost in the opening Ind AS Balance sheet prepared on
Ist April, 2018.

Amortization:

Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized on a Straight Line basis over the estimated
useful economic life. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimated useful life of intangible assets is
mentioned below:




Asset Class Useful Life

Software 5 years

Know How 10 years

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finite useful
life is reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous
estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the
Derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized

(©)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or
services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue towards satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable
consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and
services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes
offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based on
the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the
extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when
uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

Sale of Products:

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred
to the customer. The performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in
time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be
specified in the contract.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and goods and services tax. Transaction
price is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales
incentives/ discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/
right of return, using the expected value method.

Export Incentive:

Income from Export Incentives such as duty drawback and MEIS are recognised on an accrual
basis to the extent the ultimate realisation is reasonably certain.

(d)

Other Income

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive
payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.




Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to the asset’s gross carrying amount on initial
recognition. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument.

(e)

Inventories

Inventories encompass goods consumed in production (raw materials, packing materials and
stores and spare parts), goods in the production process for sale (work-in-progress) and goods
held for sale in the ordinary course of business (finished goods and stock-in-trade). Inventories
are recognised at the lower of their cost of acquisition calculated by the weighted average
method and at their net realisable value. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses necessary
to make the sale.

®

Financial Instruments

@

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets
which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to
the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

- amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets are
accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method. This category comprises
trade accounts receivable, loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and other financial
assets. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other
Income using the effective interest rate method.

- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Assets shall be measured at FVPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI. A gain or
loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVPL and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and presented within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
Other Income.

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. The movements in carrying amount are taken through Other Comprehensive Income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income is reclassified from equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss and recognised in other
gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income using the
effective interest rate method.




Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets expire or the financial assets are transferred together with all material risks and benefits.

(i)

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value if the Company has a contractual
obligation to transfer cash or other financial assets to another party. Borrowings and payables are
recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs. In subsequent periods, such liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the contractual obligation is discharged or cancelled,
or has expired.

(2

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost. The Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company
follows ‘simplified approach’ permitted by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments for recognition of
impairment loss on trade receivables and lease receivables based on expected lifetime losses at
each reporting date right from its initial recognition. If the reasons for previously recognised
impairment losses no longer apply, the impairment losses are reversed provided that this does not
cause the carrying amounts to exceed the amortised cost of acquisition.

(h)

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.Certain
accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non- financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability also reflects its non-performance risk.

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company
determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the
financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between
the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument
but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the
transaction is closed out.




While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

-Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

When quoted price in active market for an instrument is available, the Company measures the
fair value of the instrument using that price. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted prices in an active market, then the Company uses a valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take
into account in pricing a transaction.

The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If the
third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values,
then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

@

Trade Receivables and Loans

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses.
The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of
financial instrument.

1)

Investments

Financial assets are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments. Accordingly, the Company recognises financial asset only when it has a contractual
right to receive cash or other financial assets from another entity. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or FVPL. The classification depends on
the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

Investment in Equity Instruments are classified as FVPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects
on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive
Income for investment in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

(k)

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. A company’s functional currency is that of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates.




Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains/ losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary items:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective exchange rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss either as profit or loss on foreign currency transaction and
translation or as borrowing costs to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

Non — Monetary items:

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(V)

Income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period
in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for
the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However,
in case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also, for temporary differences if
any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
difference can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognized.




The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in
which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to
set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
Company

(m)

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of
reimbursement, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in theFinancial statements unless an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

()

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

()

Provision for Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits:




All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short
term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability
(accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

Post-Employment Benefits:

I. Defined Contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government administered
pension fund scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation scheme for eligible
employees.

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans:

The Company recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees render services to the Company during the
reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees before the
reporting date exceeds the contributions already paid, the deficit payable is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the reporting date, the excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments
or a cash refund.

I1. Defined benefit plans:

i) Provident fund scheme:

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme
to a separate trust administered by the Company. The minimum interest payable by the trust to
the beneficiaries is being notified by the Government every year. The Company has an obligation
to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return on investments of the trust and the notified
interest rate

ii) Gratuity scheme:

The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan namely Gratuity covering its employees. The Gratuity
scheme is funded through Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme which is administered by
LIC. The present value of provisions for defined benefit plans and the resulting expense are
calculated in accordance with Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits by the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The future benefit obligations are valued by an independent actuary at the year-end and
spread over the entire employment period on the basis of specific assumptions regarding
beneficiary structure and the economic environment. This includes the determination of the
discount rate, salary escalation, mortality rate etc. which affects the valuation. In determining the
appropriate discount rate at each balance sheet date, the Management considers the interest rates
which relates to the benchmark rate available for Government Securities and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related defined benefit obligation.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations
recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined
benefit obligations resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.




All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the
defined benefit liability (asset) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses
and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements
are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the balance sheet
as per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary; however, the entire liability towards
gratuity is considered as current as the Company will contribute this amount to the gratuity fund
within the next twelve months.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits:

Entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue to employees. Sick
leave can only be availed while annual leave can either be availed or encashed subject to a
restriction on the maximum number of accumulation of leave. The Company determines the
liability for such accumulated leaves using the Projected Accrued Benefit method with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Expenses related to other long term
employee benefits are recognized

in the Statement of Profit and loss (including actuarial gain and loss).

(p)

Lease accounting

Assets taken on lease:

The Company mainly has lease arrangements for land and building for offices, warehouse spaces
and retail stores and vehicles.

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The
assessment involves the exercise of judgement about whether (i) the contract involves the use of
an identified asset, (i1) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use
of the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use
of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability at the
lease commencement date. The ROU asset is initially recognised at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The ROU asset is depreciated using the straightline method from the commencement date to the
earlier of, the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the lease term. If a lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the ROU asset reflects that the
Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related ROU asset is depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of ROU assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of
the lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses an incremental borrowing rate specific to
the Company, term and currency of the contract. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.




Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include fixed payments,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate known at the commencement date; and
extension option payments or purchase options payment which the Company is reasonable
certain to exercise.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement the lease liability and the ROU asset. The related payments are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are
included in the line “other expenses” in the statement of profit or loss.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made and remeasured (with a corresponding
adjustment to the related ROU asset) when there is a change in future lease payments in case of
renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in case of reassessment of options.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:

The Company has elected not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for short term leases
as well as low value assets and recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

(q)

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets classified
as held for sale are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any indication of such impairment exists, the recoverable amount of
such assets / cash generating unit is estimated and in case the carrying amount of these assets
exceeds their recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and their value in use.
Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an
appropriate discount factor. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether
there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods no
longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(r)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

(©)

Segment reporting

The Company identifies operating segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and
returns and the internal organisation. The operating segments are the segments for which separate
financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated
regularly by the Managing Director (who is the Company’s chief operating decision maker) in
deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance

(®)

Dividends Payable




Final dividend on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders
and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s
Board of Directors.

(w)

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Profit or Loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Profit or Loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

™

Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial
statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only
disclosed.

W)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance
Sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

x)

Rounding Of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
million, unless otherwise stated.

)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

()

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

Income taxes

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating
budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income
taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions

(i)

Property, plant and equipment




Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful
lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by the management at the time the
asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which
may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or
service output of the asset.

(iii)

Defined Benefit Obligation

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment benefits are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ over the period
during which benefit is derived from the employees’ services. The costs are assessed on the basis
of assumptions selected by themanagement. These assumptions include salary escalation rate,
discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates.

(iv)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various
judgements and assumptions.

Right-of-use assets and lease liability

The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the noncancellable term
of the lease, together with the impact of options to extend or terminate the lease if it is reasonably
certain to be exercised. Where the rate implicit in the lease is not readily available, an
incremental borrowing rate is applied. This incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of
interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the rightof-use asset in a
similar economic environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires
estimation




INDLA PESTICIDES LIMITED
CIN : U24112UP1984PLOO0DERSS
Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2020
¢s milllon, unless otherwise stated}

As at Asat

315t March, 2020 315t March, 2019

ASSETS
Noo-Current Assats |
" Property, Flant and Equipmsnt 2 o50.01 £87.60 68786
Right of Usa Assats P 257 - -
Capital work-in-progress 2 11.56 4746 24,95
intangibls Assats 3 185 198 2.21
intangible Assats under development - 255 255
Fl izl Asvets
Investments 4 3037 30.62 313.02
Cthar Financial Assets £ 4889 78S 3848
Othar Non-current asets 5 2062 15,91 .62
Total Non Gerent assets 1,105.62 .5 79009
Current Assets ni
| 1 ¥ s 35527 1924
Fii ial Ansets
Trade Recelvables a 1EI1LTA 1,783,14 324780
Cash end Cash Equivalents 9 87 1630 2352
Other Bal with Banks 10 1392 1212 11,36
Other Finencial Aziets it &.75 4.68 1167
Dther Current Assets 12 24688 15787 112.00
Yotal Cumvent Assets 255133 2,33438 150555
Total Assets _&E&5701 31728 240054
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuImY
Ecuity Share Capial 13 31,83 3ig Iias
Other Eaulty T 253640 1,838.37 1,407.32
Toial Equity 32,5873 LA70.20 143518
LIABILITEES
Non-Current Lisbibtes
Financis! Liabilitics .
Bormowingt 15 104.54 11264 61.56
Other Firancial Uabilides 16 1.10 - -
Provislons 17 539 3.66 247
Deferred Tax Liabilitias {Net} _Hi;ﬂ__ 73.05 75.85 7427
Total Non Currant Liabllitles 18397 192.15 14430
Current Liabilitles
Financial lsbilithes _
borowings ] 135.45 47.73 32553
Trade Paynbh W
Total cutanding duss of micro sntarprises snd small snterprises 15.85 17.37 15.72
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and
amall anterprises - 558.57 53159 5145
b Firanclsl Uabilides piy 38 124 .75
Other Current Liabdlithes pel 52353 .52 29147
Provistons 23 053 3.30 o.n
Current Tax Lisbilitiss {Net} Y 851 115 6.16
Total Current Lisbilties o 5048 1,110.00 X7
Totsl Usbilntes L0878 L3216 96448
Total Equity snd LishiBthes 35511 147036 24080 54
Sygnifcant accounting policies and key accounting estimutes snd jxdgements [
See accompanying notes to the financial statements A3
A par pui rigport of wedn dikte StUMChd
For Lodha & Co. For and on behall of Doard of Oirectors of
Chartarad Accountants iy Patticides Lmited
P, Sarsdiye A K Gupta R 5. Shamaa
Farmer Expciurive Dlrettor Exmiustivn Director
Mambarshly Na, 44101 DiN: 00543580 DA 02087757
5. . Gupta Aot Pamdey
Chided Fnanciad DifiCer Comenny Secretary
Platt | Mumbei Place : Lucknow

Dated: 11 Novemnber, 2020



INDIA PESTICIDES LIMITED
CiN : U24112U£1984PLCOOGBSA
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

{All amount in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

" Revenue from Operations 25 4,796.27 3,406.88
Other Income 26 161,00 53.54
Total Income (1) 4,897.37 3,460,42
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 27 2,566.04 1,945.34
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 29 {35.07) {74.41}
Employee Benefits Expense 1Y) 163.99 134.48
Flnance Costs ai 52.18 55.77
Depreciation and Amortisation Expanse 2&3 50.62 39.58
Other Expensas a2 1,165.74 74868
Total Expenses (I1) 3,963.57 2,849.43
Profit Before Tax {I-1} 933.70 610.95
Tax E;ggﬁg
{1) Current Tax 23111 170.00
i2) Deferred Tax 18 (2.09 179
(3) Currant taxes relating to earliar years ERE -
“Profit for the period 707.83 439.20

Dther comprehensive income
(i) items that will not be reclassified to profit or toss

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (2.86) {0.70)
- Income tax expense / (benefit) related to items that will not be reclassified to
Profit and loss 0.72) {0.20}
Total Other compeehensive income (Net of Tax) {2.14) _{0.50)
Tetal Comprehensive Income for the Year 705.69 438.71
Earnings per Equity Share of Rs,100 Each 39 S |
Basic (In Rs) 2,223,682 1,378.73
Diluted {In Rs) 2,223.62 1,379.73
Significant accounting polices and Key accounting estimates and Judgements 1
See accompanylng notes to the financial statements 2A-43

As per our report of even date attached

For Lodha & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Dlreciors of

Charteraed Accountants indla Pesticides Limitad

R.P. Baradlys A. K. Gupta R, §. Sharma

Partner Executive Director Executive Director

Membership No. 44101 DIN: 00543688 OiN: 02487797
S.P. Gupta Aleet Pandey
Chief Flnanclal Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Lucknow

Dated: 11 Novernher, 2020



INDLA PESTICIDES UMITED
CIN : U24112UP1984PLOODEESS

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31st March 2020

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

A _Cash flow from operating activities;

Nt profit before tax 933,70 610.99
Ad]u tto Mo protit before tax to net cash flows | | -
Depreciation i 9{;7— 35.38
Net Jised foreign exchange loss/{gain} ' (4157) {22.53]
Net galn on sake / fair veluation of lovestments through profit and boss 5“5?‘ 0.50
{Profit}/Loss on Sele of propedty, plont end equipment (net} i 0.18) {0.50}
Dividend Incame {0.08) {0.04)
Provision for Employee Senefits 43 0.59
Finsnce Lease 0.03 -
Interest received ' 334) {4.50)
Pravision for Experted Credit Loss i 347 .65
Bod Debt ' 484 0.64
Interest expenses SZTB: 5577
Operating profit before working capital changes i 0P8 55 64281
AdJustmant for ] -
Decrease/ {Incraase) in other financlal assets ' -(8,06] .61
Deareass/ {increasa) In non current assats _{i.i‘f). {20-60}
Deaease/ {Increase} in trade recelvables ] (2531) {532.34)
Deareass/{Increase) In other current assets {“89‘521 [38.87)
{Increase}/Decrease In inventorias {334:6] (163.06)
{Increase}/ decreass In other financial liabilitles 3.0._85— 648
{Decrease}/increase In trade payables | BAES 19344
{Decrease}/ incraass In other current labilides i _3;5.51 {1L-65)
Iincrease / {Decrease} In provislons T @35_;_ 038
Cash genersted from operstions i 97442 =)
Dirett taxes paid (net) {222.91) 1173.00)
et cash generatad from operating activitias 751.51 {33.79)
B Cath generated from Investing scthvites -
Purchase of property, plant and egulg and Intangible assers (344.26) (49.82)
Proceeds from sale of propery, plant end egqulpment 0.04 0.73
Movement In Copisl Work in Progress 35.89 {22.51)
Purchass of Invegtments {21.06) {2276}
Sale proceeds of Investments 15.74 24.66
Ingr¢ass In Term Deposits {0.99) {0.TH
Inkerest Intome 354 410
Nat cash fiow [used In} from Imvesting activities {310.70% i56.37)
€ _Cash genanated from financing scthvities | ~ 1 .
Proceeds from Long term Bormowings . 240 13121
Regpayment of Long term Borrowings {30.48). {9248}
Proceedsf{repepment) from shon-tenm bomrowings (net] . (302.27) D221
Dividend paid {including corporate dhvidend tax) {7.65] {168
Interest paid {51.92) (50.64)
Cach genensted from finencing sctivities {380.94} F294
0 Natincrapse/ Decrassa in cesh end cesh squivelant | A+B+() 50,87 {720
Canh pnd Cash sguivilents
At the beglaning of the year 1630 852
At the end of the year §7.17 1630
Mokt

The sbove tash flow statement has been prepadad by using Indiredt method as per indlan Accounting Standard (ind AS) 7 - Swtement of Cash Hows.

Significant mccountlng policled 1
See accompanylng notes to the financlal stetements 243

As per our atteched report of even date

For Lodha & Co. Fos and on behal! of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountarts
ALK Gugta i 5 Shmrroa
Olreotos Rrector
Did: 00543688 DAN: 02ABTTO7
R.P. Beradiys
Parner
Memberthlp Na, 34101
5P Bupta Alget Pandey
Flace : Mumbai Chiet Fingnciad Offices Company Seoremy

Dated: Phate : Lucknow



INDIA PESTICIDES LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 315t March 2020
A. Equity Share Capltal

{All amount in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stoted)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

As at 1st April, 2018 3,18,325 31.83
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Ag at 31 March, 2019 3,18,325 31.83
Changes in equity share capital during the vear - -
As at 31 March, 2020 3,18,325 31.83

Changes in equity share capital during the yaar o -

B. Other Equity
Remeasurement
Securities of net defined
e Premium General Reserve 2::::’:’: benefit plan
Reserves B through OCI
Balance as on 1st April 2018 8.58 389.37 1,009.37 - 1,407.32
Profit/{loss) for the year - - 43820 {0.50) 438.71
Other Comprehensive income / {loss) - . ? ' -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8.58 389.37 1,448.57 {0.50) 1,846.03
Divigends paid (incl, dividend distribution tax) - - (7.66) - {7.66)
Transfer to General Reserves - 100.00 {100.00) - -
Balance as on 31st March 2019 8.58 489.37 1,340.91 {0.50) 1,838.37
Profit/{loss) for the year - - 707.83 {2.14) 705.69

Other Comprehensive Income / {loss) - - - - .
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - ul '

Dividends paid {Incl. dividend distribution tax) - - {7.66) - {7.66)
Transfer to General Reserves - 100.00 {100.00) - -
Balance as on 31st March 2020 858 589.37 1,941.08 12.64) 2,536.40

As per our report of even date attached

for Lodha & Co. For and on behatf of Board of Directors of

Chartereg Accountants Indla Pesticdides Umited

R.P. Baradlya A K. Gupta f. 5. Sharma

Partner Executive Director Exacutive Director

Membershlp No. 44101 DIN; 00543684 DIN: 02487797
S.P.Gupta Aleet Pandey

Chief Flnanclal Officer  Company Secretary

Place : Mumbal Place : Lucknow
Dated: 11 November, 2020



INDIA PESTICIDES LIMITED

policies and y notes to Financial Statements
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Company Profile

India Perticides Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorporated on 13" December 1984 and having its registered office at Bareilly, Uttar Pradesh, India. The
Company is engaged in ‘Agri Chemicals’ business which primarily includes manufacture, sale and distribution of insecticides, fungicides, herbicide and various other
agrochemical products. The Company has its own manufacturing site for agrochemical production at Sandila and Dewa Road in Uttar Pradesh.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation and Transition to Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company are based on the principle of historical cost except for certain financial assets and liabilities and defined benefit plan that are
measured at fair value, and are drawn up to comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the years presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as

at 1st April, 2018 being the date of transition to Ind AS.

The Financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following that are measured at fair value as
required by relevant Ind AS:

Certain financial assets measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

Current versus non-current classi tion
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company

has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities.

Application of New

The Company has applied the Ind AS pronouncements pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases with modified retrospective approach to
reporting period commencing from 1st April, 2019.

Use of Estimates and Judgments
In preparing the Financial statements, the Management has to make certain assumptions and estimates that may substantially impact the presentation of the
Company’s financial position and/ or results of operations.

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the Financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience
and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances.
Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results may differ from these estimates. Changes in estimates are recorded in the periods in which
they become known.

Summary of Significant accounting policies

Property, Plant & Equipment

Measurement at recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and
equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and other nonrefundable purchase taxes or levies, directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any.
Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria
are met. Expenses directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure
related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition
criteria are met.

Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets
outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to consider the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment appearing in the financial statements prepared
in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and
used the same as deemed cost in the Opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2018.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight Line Method based on the useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.

The Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Factory Building 30 years
Plant & Machinery 20 years
R&D Equipment 20 years
Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8years
Office Equipments 5years
Computers 3years

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Dereognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized



(b)

(c

(d

(e
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(i)

Intangible Assets

Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets arising on acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date
of acquisition. Internally generated intangibles including research cost are not capitalized and the related expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The Company had elected to consider the carrying value of all its intangible assets appearing in the financial statements prepare in accordance with Accounting
Standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and used the same as deemed
cost in the opening Ind AS Balance sheet prepared on 1st April, 2018.

Amortization:
Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized on a Straight Line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The amortization expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimated useful life of intangible assets is mentioned below:

Asset Class Useful Life
Software 5 years
Know How 10 years

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these
expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Derecogni
The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss
arising from the Derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset
and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized

on:

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the
amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of
variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based on
the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to
significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

Sale of Products:
Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred to the customer. The performance obligation in case of sale of
product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and goods and
services tax. Transaction price is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the expected value method.

Export Incentive:
Income from Export Incentives such as duty drawback and MEIS are recognised on an accrual basis to the extent the ultimate realisation is reasonably certain.

Other Income

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to the asset’s gross carrying amount on initial recognition. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument.

Inventories

Inventories encompass goods consumed in production (raw materials, packing materials and stores and spare parts), goods in the production process for sale (work-in-
progress) and goods held for sale in the ordinary course of business (finished goods and stock-in-trade). Inventories are recognised at the lower of their cost of
acquisition calculated by the weighted average method and at their net realisable value. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated cost of completion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its
transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

- amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method. This category comprises trade accounts receivable, loans, cash and cash
equivalents, bank balances and other financial assets. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
Other Income using the effective interest rate method.

- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Assets shall be measured at FVPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVPL and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and presented within other gains/ (losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in Other Income.

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. The movements in carrying amount are taken through Other Comprehensive Income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss and recognised in other
gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income using the effective interest rate method.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
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Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial assets are transferred together with all

material risks and benefits.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value if the Company has a contractual obligation to transfer cash or other financial assets to another party. Borrowings
and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs. In subsequent periods, such liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the contractual obligation is discharged or cancelled, or has expired.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The Company applies Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ permitted by Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss on trade receivables and lease receivables based on expected lifetime losses at each reporting date right from
its initial recognition. If the reasons for previously recognised impairment losses no longer apply, the impairment losses are reversed provided that this does not cause
the carrving amounts to exceed the amortised cost of acquisition.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non- financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-
performance risk.

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or
received. If the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price
in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is
initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices)

-Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When quoted price in active market for an instrument is available, the Company measures the fair value of the instrument using that price. A market is regarded as
active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted prices in an active market, then the Company uses a valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use
of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If the third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is
used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Trade Receivables and Loans
Trade receivables are initially re ised at fair value. Sub itly, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any
expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

Investments

Financial assets are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments. Accordingly, the Company recognises financial asset only when it
has a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets from another entity. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets are measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or FVPL. The classification depends on the
Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Investment in Equity Instruments are classified as FVPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in Other
Comprehensive Income for investment in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Foreign Currency Transactions
The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. A company’s functional currency is that of the
primary economic environment in which the company operates.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains/ losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary items:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective exchange rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss either as profit or loss on foreign currency
transaction and translation or as borrowing costs to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

Non — Monetary items:

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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Income tax
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of
Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized. Also, for temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than
business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in theFinancial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Provision for Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the
period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

Post-Employment Benefits:

I. Defined Contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government administered pension fund scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation
scheme for eligible employees.

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans:

The Company recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees render services to
the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees before the reporting date exceeds the contributions already
paid, the deficit payable is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the reporting date, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payments or a cash refund.
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Il. Defined benefit plans:

i) Provident fund scheme:

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme to a separate trust administered by the Company. The minimum
interest payable by the trust to the beneficiaries is being notified by the Government every year. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any,
between the return on investments of the trust and the notified interest rate

Gratuity scheme:

The Company has a Defined Benefit Plan namely Gratuity covering its employees. The Gratuity scheme is funded through Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme
which is administered by LIC. The present value of provisions for defined benefit plans and the resulting expense are calculated in accordance with Ind AS 19 - Employee
Benefits by the Projected Unit Credit Method. The future benefit obligations are valued by an independent actuary at the year-end and spread over the entire
employment period on the basis of specific assumptions regarding beneficiary structure and the economic environment. This includes the determination of the discount
rate, salary escalation, mortality rate etc. which affects the valuation. In determining the appropriate discount rate at each balance sheet date, the Management
considers the interest rates which relates to the benchmark rate available for Government Securities and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related defined benefit obligation.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The
defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if
applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset) are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are not reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the balance sheet as per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary; however, the
entire liability towards gratuity is considered as current as the Company will contribute this amount to the gratuity fund within the next twelve months.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits:

Entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue to employees. Sick leave can only be availed while annual leave can either be availed or
encashed subject to a restriction on the maximum number of accumulation of leave. The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leaves using the
Projected Accrued Benefit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Expenses related to other long term employee benefits are
recognized

in the Statement of Profit and loss (including actuarial gain and loss).

Lease accounting

Assets taken on lease:

The Company mainly has lease arrangements for land and building for offices, warehouse spaces and retail stores and vehicles.

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The assessment involves the exercise of judgement about whether (i) the
contract involves the use of an identified asset, (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease,
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability at the lease commencement date. The ROU asset is initially recognised at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The ROU asset is depreciated using the straightline method from the commencement date to the earlier of, the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the
lease term. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the ROU asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the
related ROU asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of ROU assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease
liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses an incremental borrowing rate specific to the Company, term and currency of the
contract. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate known at the
commencement date; and extension option payments or purchase options payment which the Company is reasonable certain to exercise.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the ROU asset. The related payments are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “other expenses” in the
statement of profit or loss.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made and remeasured
(with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset) when there is a change in future lease payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in
case of reassessment of options.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
The Company has elected not to recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for short term leases as well as low value assets and recognizes the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets classified as held for sale are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any indication of such impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets / cash generating unit is estimated and
in case the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their
present value based on an appropriate discount factor. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is indication that an impairment loss
recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Segment reporting

The Company identifies operating segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation. The operating are the
segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Managing Director (who is the
Company’s chief operating decision maker) in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance

Dividends Payable
Final dividend on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Profit or Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Profit or Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is
adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Rounding Of Amounts
All amounts disclosed in the Financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million, unless otherwise stated.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2020.

Critical i i and

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

Income taxes

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after
determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets
are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset.

Defined Benefit Obligation

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 19 ‘Employee benefits’
over the period during which benefit is derived from the employees’ services. The costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by themanagement. These
assumptions include salary escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions.

Right-of-use assets and lease liability

The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the noncancellable term of the lease, together with the impact of options to extend or
terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. Where the rate implicit in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This
incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the rightof-use asset in a similar economic environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires
estimation
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INDHA PESTICHIES LIMTTED
Motes to the Financdal Statements |Conded. )

4 invesiments (AT gamgint in ngien repees mithon, uniess orhereise stoted)
As at As at As gt

Particulars
31st March, 2020 A1st March, 2018 1st April, 2018

(A} Investment In Quoted Equity Shares, Fully Paid Up
(At fair value thraugh Profit and Loss account)

1 Punjab National Bank 000 0.00 0,00
50 ( 31st March, 2019 : 50, Odst April, 2018 : 50] equity shares of Rs.2
each

2 Trivenl Engineering Lid D2 0.04 0.02
666 | 31st March, 2019 : 666, 01st April, 2018 : 666) eguity shares of
Fs. 10 oach

3 Coromandzl international Ltd .07 0.0& o.o7
125 | 31st March, 2018 135, Lst Apell, 201K - 125) equity shares of Re 1
ench

4 Suditl Industries Lid 007 02 0.28
8899 (315t March, 2019 - 8632, 1st April, 2018 : 4632) equity shares of
Re.10 each

5 Bharat Electronics Lid - - 023
Nl [ 315t Barch, 200% ; pil, st April, 2018 : Le0OE) equity shares of Rs.10
each

& Bharat Financial Inclusion Lid T g .14
NIl [ st March, 2019 : NI, st April, 2018 - 16%) equity shares of fe.1
mach

7 Camiin Fine Sciences L2 — 3 = 022
K[ 3241 bAmrch, 2009 @ pil, 015t April, 2018 © 3219) egulty dhares of Re_d
aich

& [Dalmia Bharat Lid - ‘ .25
W[ 31s1 pAarch, 2015 ; Mil, 01st Apri, 2018 ; 33} equity shares of Ry 2
each

3 Dillp Bulldeon Ltd : : : 036
Kl [31sf March, 2019 ; NIT, 13t Anrll, 201K 7 359) equity shares of As.10
esch

10 Edelweiss Financial Services Ltd = - .20
NIV A1at Bareh, 2009 @ NI, Lek Aprll, 2078 ; H31) equity shares of Be,1
aach

11 Ewerest Kanto Cyllnger Ltd . 07
Kl { 313t March, 2009 ; NIl 035k Aprl, 2018 © 3995} equity shares of Rs.2
mixch

:.l:.'.'_HZIEI Prudential Life Imuranl:EElﬁnpanv_l.:t-d — . H.I-E
Ml [ 3141 March, 2009 [ Mil, 01st Apri; 2018 - 523} equity shares of Rs.10
each

1% india Cements Lid = : 0.23
RIVT 31ay March, 2019 : Nil, 01zt Apri, 2018 - 1652} equity shares of R 10
gagh



14 Larsen & Toubro Lid -
Mil { 31st March, 2019 - Ni, O1st April, 2018 . 218) equity shares of Rs.2
Baich

15 Maruti Surukl India itd 2
NIl { 315t March, 2019 : Nil, 05t Apri, 2018 : 38) equity shares of Rs.5
Each

0.34

16 NCC Lt
M [ 3157 March, 2009 @ MU, O1st Aprl, 2018 - 1238) equlty shares of fs.2
eacty

17 Piramal Enterprises Ltd -
NI ( 315t March, 2018 : Nil, 005t Apri, 2018 ; 71) equity shares of Rs.2
cach

(15

017

18 Stevlite Technologies Lid
Nil | 3151 March, 2018 : NI, Dlst ApH, 2018 - 1875) equity shares of Rs.2
each

19 Tata Motars ' :
Wil | 31st March, 2019 © N, 035t Apri, 2018 ; 1B75) equity shares of Rs.2
each

Sy pp— e -

20 Vedanta Ld .
WA { 3390 March, 2099 - NIl @rlst Apri, 2018 : 1150) équily shares of fe,l
ench

21 Vinati Qrganics Led
Wil [ 3158 March, 2019 : 159, Ddst Apri, 2016 @ 1B75) equity shares of Rs.2
Bach

22 Welrmann Forex Ltd -
Nil | 335t March, 2049 : Nil, D15t Apri, 2018 : 102) equity shares of Rs. 10
Each

(i e 7

e

a3l

(R 1]

30 Welipun Enferprises Lid
Mil | 31s8 March, 2019 : MU, D1t Apr, 2018 © 1657) equlty shares of Re, 10
each

.33

24 AlA Engineering Lid. -
Mil [ 315t March, 2018 ; 191, O1st Apri, 2018 : Mil) equity shares of Rs.2
each

25 Axis Bank Lig I =
Wil { 315t March, 2016 - 563, O1st Apri, 2015 - Nil) equity shares of fs.2
each

26 Canfin Homes Lid 0.14
BY7 | 31s1 March, 2019 : 691, 015t Apri, 2018 : Nil} equity shares of Rs.2
each

S

27 DFM Foods Ltd ' 035
1989 | 31st March, 2019 : 1988, Dlst Apri, 2018 - N8 equity shares of fs.2
gt



"8 MDFC Bank Ltd
Ml (325t March, 2019 ; 254, 01st Apri, 2018 : NIl] equity shares of Rs.2
wach

79 ITB Industries Ltd i o
403 [ 315t March, 2019 ; 476, D st Apri, 2008 - Nil] equity shares of Rs.10
eatc

3 1B Chemnicals & Pharmaceuticads Lid
Wil [ 31st March, 2019 : 821, O1st Apr, 2018 | N} aguity shares of Rs.2
mach

058

0.47

033

31 K M Sugar Mills Lid 0.8
125619 | 31st March, 2019 1 60898, 01st Apri, 2018 - Nil) equity shares of
Rs.2 mach

12 Magrma Fincorp Ltd E lﬂﬂF
5352 { 318t March, 2019 : 3767, 01st Apri, 2008 : NIl equity shares of
Rs.2 mach

055

0.64

33 Majesoo Ltd o2g
1053 | 31an March, 7019 | 740, 0180 Aprl, 20108 ; Nil] eguity shares of Ba.5
each

0.36

34 Mayur Lindiguoters Liméted -
N1l [ 3151 March, 2019 - 754, tist Apri, 7018 : NI} eguity shares of ReS
each

35 Mesto Lid 024
501 [ 3ist March, 20159 ; 501, 01st Apri, 2018 = Nil} equity shares of As.2
earh

0.2p

0,24

36 Crlent Electric Limited 035
1261 [ 315t March, 2019 | 1764, Dist Agrl, 2018 | Nil] equity shares of
Ree 1 mach

oz

37 B imduetrio ) id fxr
188 [ 3151 March, 2019 : 237, 01st Apr, 2018 - NIf) equity shares of R.|
cach

0,24

38 United Breweries Lid
Ml { 315t March, 2019 © 113, 015t Apri, 2018 : NiT} egulty shares of Re. 1
Each

39 Zansar Technologies Lid P
Nl [ 31ar March, 2019 ; 1297, 01t Apri, 2018 : Nil] equity shares of Rs.2

each

40 Alkyd Amines Chamicals Ltd DI
174 [ 325t March, 2019 ; Nil, Brist Apri, 2018 : Nif} sauity shares of Rs.S
pach

41 Bata indla Lid 024

108 [ 31st March, 2013 ; Nil, 0lst Apri, 2018 : NI} eguity shares of fa 5
each

016



42 Borosi| Limited

12E%(314 March, 2019 : NI, 0at Api, 2008 |

each

Hil} eguity shares of Be,1

&3 ICICH Bank Ltd.

B4 { 31st March, 2018 Nil, 0st Aprl, 20018 :

=ack

i) equity shares of Rs.2

020

84 ITL Wealth Management Ltd,

205 { 31st Macch, 2019 1 Mil, Olst Apri, 2018 :

gach

45 Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd

167 | 31xt Masch, 20019 5 Mil, D3et Apri, 2008 -

each

Mil) equity shares of Rs.2

Mil) eguity shares of B2 S

0.20

022

#6 Mult! Commodity Exchange of india td

216 [ 31st March, 2009 5 Nil, DRt Apré, 2018 :

each

Mil) egquity shares of Rs. 30

47 Muthoot Finance Lod

316 | ¥1st March, 2009 | NIl 02st Apri, 2018

each

Wit} equlty shzres of As.10

0.19

A8 Matio Pharma L,
446 [ 31st Manch, 3009 ; Nil, Dist Apri, 2018
each

121 [ 31st March, 20019 ; Nil, 0=t Apry, 2008 :

each

¢ Wiy equiry shares of Ra.2

Mil) equity shares-of Rs.2

50 Mocil Lid

2344 [ 315 March, 2009 | N, DEST AR, 20LE © NS eguity shares of fs. 10

each

51 Rites Ltd,

BO7 ( 31at March, 2009 ; Kil, D11 Apri, 2008 :

earh

M) equiny sheres of RS 10

a0

52 Tube Imvestments Elﬂnl:l'lq ied,

676 (34st March, 2049 ; i, Blst Apri, 2018 ; Ni} equity shares of Be.1

each

53 Sarn Industries Lod

2200 [ 31st March, 2618 : 2200, Olst Apri, 2018 : 2200} equity shares of

Rs.10 each

0.03

0.04

ona




(B} Investment In Unquoted Equlty Shares, Fully Pald Up
(At falr value through Profit and Lass account)

1 Kalyanpur Cements Ltd
16500 [ 31st March, 2015 ; 16500, 1st April 2018 : 16500) equity shares of
Rs.10 each

2 Eggro Paper Moulds Ltd
3300 | 31st March, 2019 : 3300, 01st Apri, 2018: 3300} equity shares of
Rs.10 each

3 United Health Care Ltd
100 (315t March, 2019 : 100, Olst Aprl, 2018: 100} equity shares of Rs.10
each

4 XLO Machine Tool Lid
200 { 31st March, 2019 : 200, 01st Apri, 2018; 200} equity shares of Rs.10
each

5 Stallion Shox Ltd
100 [ 31st March, 2013 : 100, Oist Apri, 2018: 100} equity shares of Rs.10
each

55 Swarup Publication P Ltd
1900 ( 31st March, 2019 : 1900, 01st Apri, 2018: 1900} equity shares of
Rs.10 each

56 Indo fil Limited
23 { 31st March, 2019 : 22, 01st Apri, 2018: 21) equity shares of Rs.10
each

57 Swarup Chemicals Pvt Limited
3900 [ 31st March, 2019 : 3900, 01st Apri, 2018: 3900) equity shares of
Rs.10 each

TOTAL

{C) Investment in Unguoted Mutual Funds
(At falr value through Profit and Loss account)

1 Master Share UTI
100 [ 31st March, 2018 : 100, 0ist Aprl, 2018: 100} equity shares of Rs.10
each

0.00

0.00

0.00

2 BOI AXA Large & Mid Cap Equity Fund
2,15,492.045 { 31st March, 2019 : 2,15,492.045, Oist Apri, 2018 :
1,38,619.351) units.

9.58

7.20

5.03

3 BOI AXA Equity Debt Rebalancer Fund
Nil { 31st March, 2019 : 68,524.5875, 01st Aprl, 2018 : 2,68,328.515)
units,

1.03

397

4 1CICI Prudential Regular Savings Plan Growth
34,641.616 { 31st March, 2019 : 34,641.616, 0lst Apri, 2018 : 34,641.616)
unlts.

0.75

0.69

0.64

S BQI AXA Capltal Protectlon Fund Serles 4
NIl { 31st March, 2019 : NI, 01st Apri, 2018 : 34,990) unlts.

0.38



BOI AXA Capital Provection Fund Saries 5
N1l { 31st March, 2018 | Nil, Bst Aorl, 2018 : 39980) units.

0,45

7 Birla Sun Ute Medium Term Plan [Growth) e
Nil (3132 March, 2019 ; 1,06,152,585, 01t Aprn, 2018 : 1,086,152 585)
unita.

B HOI AXA Short term ncome Fund -
Ml { 315t March, 2019 ¢ NI, 015t Apri, 2018 - 4,41, 158,306} units.

213

B3

iz

g
E|
:
.

1,50,000 | 335t Masch, 2019 - 1,50,000, 015t Apel, 2018 - 1,50,000) units.

10 BOI AXA Conservative Hybrid Fund .
NI [ 315t March, 2019 ; 2,54,691.182, O1st Aprl, 2018 ; 2,46,876,944}
1L

11 BOI AXA Small Cap Fund 1.76
2,00.000 (315t March, 2019 : 2.00,000, Dist Apei, 2018 : Milj units,

12 S| Overrght Fund (G} 0.49
126.9841 {315t March, 2039 : 1614285, D1st Agel, 2018 : Nil) units.

13 ICICI Prutential Balanced Advantage Fund I 7.40
58,810,472 {315t March, 2018 NI, 015t Apri, 2018 < Nitp anits,

186

14 DEP Corporate Bond Fund L5
NIl {315t March, 3019 3 ML O%st Agerl, 2018 | Nil) units

15 D152 Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund i 176
1,34,662.963{31st March, 2015 : Nil, 015t Apri, 2018 : Ni) it

15 B0 AXA Mid & Small Cap Equity & Debt Fund L6
1,57,472.441 {315t March, 2009 : Wi, D152 Apri, 3018 1 ME} units,

g

(D) nwestment in Unguobed Debt instruments, Fully Paid Up

1 indka Infoline Finance Lid A.44
4,000 60 9.5% | 31st parch, 2019 ¢ 4,000 & 5.5 %, (st Apri, 2008 M|
non-convertiblo debentees of R 1000 ach

TOTAL ey

{E} Investment in Unguated Gowernment Securities
[At Amarilsed Cost)

1 Mational Saving Certificate

S A

TOTAL

2 g

o4

L RTERET T

:

E I8

Aggregate book value of:
DQuated jvestments LR
Ungquated imestrrants 0.0

Aggregate market valun of;
Duoted investrments
Uncpmbed irvestrments

- Eg

&ggregate amount of impairment in valis of Ieestments

L
25.53

5B

IT.E8



MDA FESTICIDES UMITED
Mates bo the Financlal Statements [Cantd. |

5 Other Financlal Assets fAN ameunt in Indian fupees mitlion, weiess ofherwise stated,
st Az ot A gt
31st March, 2020 J1st March, 2019 1sk Aperil, 2018
Unsecured and Considered Good :
Sundry Deposits ) 16.37 9.63 3,63
Term Deposits® a4z 28.27 28.84
Totsl 48,84 A7.H5 A8.48

*on Een agalnst margin money, against bank guarantee and other commitments

6 Other Naf-current assets

Particulars As at As at s at
3Jist March, 2020 31t March, 2018 vat April, 2018
" Advance to Gratuity Trust 651 532 502
Capital Advances 14.00 10,50 .
Total 20.6 18.81 .02
7 Inventories
h AL ot A% ot B ot
PREEIGHNEA 315t March, 2020 315t March, 2018 15t April, 2018
Raw Materials 145.78 154.26 7361
Work-n-Progress 28.08 1571 518
Finished Goods 16185 18015 o627
Packing Materlals 23.47 20.07 13.57
Stores, Spares and Consumables 5.55 5.08 158
Total 285,73 355.27 192.21

& Trade Recolvabies

Particulars a o e
315t March, 2020 J1st March, 2015 st Aprfl, 2018
Unsecured:
Considered good 1,831.74 1,783.14 1.247.80
Considered doubtiul 11.99 B.52 .37
1,8431.73 1,791.66 1,254.16
Less! Allowante Tur Expected Credit Loss (11.59) 18.52) (6.37)
Total 1.831.74 1,783.14 1,247.80
49 Cash amd Cash Eqgubrdents
s ol As at A5 3t
Particulars
315t March, 2020 315t March, 2019 15t Aprfl, 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand aan 527 1.59
Balances with Banks 2 — —
Im Current Accounis 55.18 11.08 193]_
im Cash Credit Aecounts 1.50

Total 6117 16.30 13.52
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TNEMA, PESTICHHES LIMITED
HRotes 1o the FAnanctal Statements (Contd. )

15 Borrowings [Non-Current) Al amount In indian rupees milfion, unless otherwie stated}
As at As at As at
Particu
it 315t March; 2020 31stMarch,2019 st Apuil, 2018
_Secured Term Loan: s o]
From Banka 2224 56.02 708
Unsecured Teem Loan:
From Others i 8786 157 1595
From Ralatad partias 453 445 30.80
Lesgd: Current maturitlas of Long tarm Debt £059 6338 6637
Toul o] 11254 7.5

& Seeurad Torm Loan from a Bank ovtotanding for Ra 12.97 milony |e securad by fiest parl peesd cha rge oeetad by mocgags of Pk & tquipment wnd
bla propactes | d ot Sandiia Unit snd carmas interact Rute @ 9% 2 A0K.

b Term Loan from Banks comprse of mulriple Vahicle Loans which are zach yabl: In bala £ w54 iy bnseall from the dave of balence
sheet, Interes rats for these losns ranges bevwesn 5.50 % o 10.00%.

¢ Loans from Othars comprise of Inter corporates (oand which are not due for rapeymant I tha tind 17 montis from 10e date of Ohe Bakance Shast. Ml aredt
oh thesa ioahd are payable a1 rates ranging betwesn 9% oo 12 % per snaum.

d Loana from Related Parties are dus for rapayment In the nast 312 months from the datz of the Sallance Sheet 1long wikh Inlevest @ 12 % per s

16 Other Fnandal Labilites

Asot Asat Aspt
Particuta
gt 31st March, 2020 315t March, 2019 st Apeil, 2018
Unsecured e
Lz Lnbiliry 110 a . -
Toual 110 - H =
17 Provisions
As at As at Asat
Parthcula
& 3ist March, 2020 3istMarch, 2019 13t Apeil, 2018
Prongsion for Employee Bonufits
Provision for Comg et 2 53g 366 A7
Tenl 538 is6 14
18 Deferred Tax Liabilities
As at Asat As st
31st March, 2020 31stMarch,2018  Ist April, 2018
mm Liabilities
_Arising on secount of:

Difference bltwl-ln written down valus/capital work In
prowress of Nxed asvels 35 par the books of accounts and

Incorne Tax Act, 1961 7.8 TLE4 6860
Incraase I borrowing cost ¢ t to spplkation of elfective | ™o
thod 156 280 A08
Pravislan for Emplrysa Definad Banafit obgations 249 3.7 32.08
Proviakon for Comp d Ak Q.01 442 .68
Oeferred Tax Assats
Mllg of tof:
Laasa llsbllity amorisation {0.03) - -
Allcwanios for Doubtul debt and Advences } 3.7 {2.63) {2.20}
Differsnca in carrying vilua srd Tax base of Iy nts d at FVTPL {1.56) (.14} {6.04)
Totl Rt ) b ] 7427
19 Borrowings {Current)
Asat Asat As at
Particuln
= 3tst March, 2020 315t March, 2019 35t Apel, 2018
__Seamwd
From Banks 135.45 A3 32553
Yol 13545 &a7.13 31551
Working capital kens ars secured by fiest porl pessu charge by way of hypotbemoos on the soment aosls of the C y asimoly b sk of faw
Hpit, finlshad and work in prog stored spéres and bhac and pack dy . bock dobte 3 ad sther Lo AsieE BOth D v
future, and sdditionally sacured by way of second charge on !
5. Thel ble p rtien dloumted 3t Plot o, E~17 to 8223, UPSIDC, Oeva Roadd, Liucinow,

b, Land & bulkding lh:nud at Khysra Mo, 01, Vilbege Utiar Dhauna, Tiwarlgan], Shinkat, Fatzabad Road, Luckmow owned by M/c Ram Suwarep Cokd Stocage b
Allled! Ing, Luckromus,

¢, Hypothecation of Plant & Machinery st UPSIOC, Deva Rowd. Luckngw In Brvour of the banikers.

d. Lexxehld Induxtrial plot ae X4 & X5 at UPSIDC, Senddila, UP




10 Trade Payables

As et Asat Asat
Particul
o 31t March, 2020 31st March, 2019 15t Apell, 2018
3} Dues to MSME 16,85 17.57 15.72
!b[ Dues to Other then MSME 59857 531559 351.65
Yol S1542 540.96 w73

Disciosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on ihe Information avallable with the Compa
Asot Asat

31st March, 2020 315t March, 2019

5} Amount remaining unpaid to eny suppller st the snd of sach secounti n

Principel 1685 7.5 1572
Intsrest 066 G0 004
Tl 1751 17.47 15.76

{b) The amownt of intevast padd by the buyer In cerms of section 16 of che MO Aci,
along with the amount of the payment made (o the suppliar beyond the appoimed day
during 2ach accauntdng year,

{c} The t of due and paysbbe ior the period of delay In making paymeat
{which have been pakd but beyond the appointed day during dhe year but withoot
adding the interest specified under the MAMED e,

(d) Thee amoumit of intarest accroed and remaining ungald at che end of sach acocimding
yeul. 066 010 004
(a) The of hurther in T ning due and payable even in the soetaeding

years, inbhl such date whan thw interest tues above are acially paid @ the ssall

entarprise, for the purposte of dsallowanc: of 3 deductitds axpendiire wider wctos 13

of the MAMED AT

11 Other Rnanclal Usblliies
Asot Asat As ot

Sachtics 315t March, 2020 31t March, 2019 istApd}, 2018
Current maturtties of Long-term debts / borrowings

Taerm Loass
from Banks (Refer note no 18) 15.57 3529 35.34
Unsacurd
From Rebated Partias 24.93 4.48 30.80
Trmche xnd Securlty Deposits from Customers ALRY 3212 ¥5.61
Ladya Linbility 003 - -
Total B35 5254 "nrs

22 Other Current Liabllities
S st As at Asat
il 315t March, 2020 31stMarch, 2018 1st Apell, 2018

[Ty —
Arh from Customarn 52.36 .44 24 5%
Qs
m ok o 10.18 208 A6
Towal 6LE3 252 .47

As ot Asat As at
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 Lot Apell, 2018

059 2.0 [T
Towal 053 aw [
24 Cirant Tax Lisbilities (Net)
Sarticoinrs 31t March, ?‘o;t; 315t Mml‘.h.:;:; 15t Aprll, :;;
Tax Payable 851 3.16 6.6

(Mot of Advance Tax & TDS Rs.222.91 a5 st 315t March, 2020, Rs. 173.00 28 3t 215t March,
018 and Rs. 15634 as at 1st April, 2018}
Totl 2351 [XT] 6.1




INDIA PESTICIDES LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements (Contd.)

25 Revenue from Operations (AN omount I fodion rupees mBBon, anfess othersise suated)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

(i} Sales of products

Home Market (Net of Returns) 1,800.34 1,694.64
Exports 2,879.24 1,707.96
4,779.55 3,402.60

Less:Discounts . .
4,779.59 3,402.60

(ii) Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentives 16.68 428
_Total 4,796,27 3,406.88
26 Other Income

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

Interest Inome from financial assets at amortised cost

On bank deposiis 2.82 2.96
Other Interest 1.13 1.14
Dividend Income 0.08 0.04

Other non-nperating Income (Net of expenses directly attributable to
such Incame)

Fair value of Investment through Amortised cost 0.39 0.05
Fair value of Investments at fair value through profit and loss - -
Miscellaneous income 0.96 2.80

Other galns and losses

Net Gain on foreign currency transactions & translation 95.44 46.13

Profit from Sale of Investments - .

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.19 0.41
Total 101.00 53.54

27 Cost of Materlals Consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

Raw materlals

Opening stock 154.26 73.62
Add : Purchases of Raw Material 2,380.10 1,888.83
Less; Closing stock 145.78 154.26

TOTAL 2,388.57 1,808.19




Packing Materials Consumed

Opening Stock 20.07 13.57
Add:Purchases of Packing Material 180,88 143.65
Less: Closing Stock 23.47 20.07
TOTAL 177.48 137.15
Total 2,566.04 1,945.34

29 Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods 160.15 96.27

Work in Progress 15.71 5.18
(a) 175.85 101.44

Inventorles at the end of the year

Finished goods 182,85 160,15

Work in Progress 28.08 15.71
(b) 210.93 175.85

_Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (a) {b) ~35.07 -74.41

30 Employee Benefits Expense

Particiilars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019
Salaries, wages and benefits 142.33 115.83
Contribution to provident and other funds 16.48 15.06
Staff welfare expenses 5.19 3.59
Total 163.99 134.48
31 Finance Costs
particalars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019
Interest expense -
- Cash credit facilities / buyers' credit 24.23 25.94
- Term Loans from Banks 4.28 7.82

(Net of subsidy Rs. NIL for 31st March, 2020 ; Rs. 5 for 31st March
2019 ; Rs.5 for for 31st March, 2018)

- On Other Loans 11.40 10.56
- Others 5.93 5.55
Other Borrowing Costs 6.34 5.89
Total 52.18 55.77

2 & 3 Depreclation and Amortisation Expense

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Particulars

Depreciation on Property, Plant 8 equipment & Right of Use and
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 50.69 38.58

Total 50.69 39.58




32 Other Expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Consumption of stores, spares and consumables 440.76 250.28
Power and Fuel 223.70 171.85
Labour Charges 90.58 32.97
Pollution Control Expenses 10.64 7.07
Freight and handling Charges 176.88 113.80
Brokerage and Commission - -
Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses 9.40 9.94
Legal and Professional expenses 77.16 69.03
Travelling & Conveyance 36.96 34.580
Rent Expenses 7.76 6.07
Repairs & Malntenance
-Building 1.66 3.39
-Others 7.36 4.43
- Machinery 23.18 13.58
Rates, Fees and Taxes 8.25 4.91
Testing and Sampling Charges 7.50 424
Insurance 6.80 343
Printing, Stationery and Communication Expenses 6.66 6.33
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses and Other Donations* 4,72 1.68
Poyment to Auditors
- Statutory Audit Fees 2.00 0.20
- In other Capacity
For Tax Audit = 0.08
For other matters B 0.03
Bad Debts 4.84 0.64
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3.47 2.15
Loss from Sale of Investments 0.15 0.49
Falr value of Investments at fair value through profit and loss 5.81 0.07
Miscellaneous Expenses 9.51 7.43
Total 1,165.74 748.68
“Note : Co ate Soc [ slhllity Expenses
A |Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Gross Amount Required to be spent by the Company : 11.03 8.74
B |Amount spent during the year / perlod on: Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2019

Construction / Acquisition of ant assets

ii [Purpose othar than above 4.64 1.38
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 (|31st March, 2019
Related party transactions in relation to Corporate Social - -
Responsibility:
Year ended Year ended
Provision movement during the year/ Period: 31st March, 2020|| 31st March, 2019

Opening provision

Addition during the year / Period
Utilised during the year /Period
Closing provision




INDHA PESTICIDES LIMITED
Notes to the Finenclel Statermants {Contd.)

33 Leasea
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 315t March, 2020:
Asat Asat

31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

Opening Balance s
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 4148 =
Addidons 1.10 -
Addians E =
Depreclation 002 | N
Closing Balance 42,57 -

The Company does not face 3 significant liquidity risk with regard to its kease Nakilities a5 the cument assats gre suflicient to meet the obligstions redated to
lzase labilitles a5 and when they fall due, Rent expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs.7.76 M for the yvear snded March 31, 2020. The Company's
lease ssset classes primardly conslst of leases for land. The Compeny assesses whether 8 contract contalne 1 lease, s lnceptdon of 3 contract. A contract is, or
containg, a lease If the contract conveys the right o congol the vse of an ldemiited asset for z perfod of dme In Exchange of consideration. To assess wheiher
3 contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract mvolves the use of an identified asset (i)
the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the periad of the Jease and (i) the Company has the right o divect
the use of the asset.

At the date of commencemaent of the lease, the Company recognizes 2 right-of-use asset ("ROU*} and a comesponding lease liability for all lease
arrangaments In which b is 3 lessee, excepr for keases with a term of twehve months or less [shor-term leases) and low value leases. For these shom-teqm and
low velue laases, the Company recognizes the legse paymenis as an operatng expense In the staternent of profit snd loss.

Ceraln lease arrangements include the optlons to extend os terminate the lease before the end of the lease tarm. ROU assets and lease Nabilities include the
optlans when it is reasenably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the kease Rability adiusted for any lease payments made at of
pricr o the commencement date of the lease plus any Inltlal dlvect costs less any lease Inventories. They are subsequently meanired ab cost less acoumulared
depreciation and Impelrment losses,

Right-of-use assats are depreciatad from the commencement date on 2 straight-ime basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underiying
asset, Right of use assets are evaluated for secoverabllity whenaver events or changes In the drammstances Indicate thar thedr camying amounts may not be
recovensble, For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable smount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the valee-in-usel is
determingd on an Individual Bsset basis unless the asset does not generate cash Rows tht are targely Independent of those from gther assets. tn such cases,
the mcovarsble amount is determingd for the Cash Genersting Unit (CGU) to which the rsses belongs.

Thi lease llabllity is Initlally maasure at amortizad cost at tha oresent value of the luture lease paymants, The kease pay are dise ¢ using the
ifarest rate imglicit in the lease or, If not readily detarminable, using the Increnental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
ligbllities aré remeasursd with § corrésponging adiustment 10 the related right of use asser it the Company changes its assessment it whether K will exercise
an extenslen or 8 terminetion option,

Transttdon

Effective from 15t April, 2019, the Company adoptad Ing AS 116 “Leases” and apolied the standand to all tease contracts exdsting on 15t Apel, 2019 using the
modified retrospecthre method end has ken the cumulethe adjustment to retaingd gamings, on the date of inlia! application. Conseaquently, the Company
recorded the lease labiliry 31 the precent value of the lease payrmants dlscounted 21 the Incremental borrowing rate and the dght of use asset ar s carvying

armount 35 i the standarg had been apolied since the commencement date of the lease, but discoumed at the Company's incrementa) borrowing e et the
date of inttisl applicstion, Compamiives a1 at end of the yeer ended it March, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and thecefore will cominue to
be reperted under the socourting pollcies

The following It the summary of practical expedients electad on Inkttal appiication:

= Applied 8 $ingle glscount e 1o 3 portiollo of l4gses of similar assars in similar eo Iz eav with a similas end date,
= Apolied the exemptlon not 10 recognize dght-of-use pssets and liobilitles for loases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of indteal
appllcation.

= Bxcluded the inttigl glrect coste from rhe measurement of the Aght-of-use 3sset 35 31 the date of midal application,
= Applied the practicel expedient 1¢ grandfather the assessment of which transacuons are leases, Actordingly, nd AS 116 & apphled only to commacts
that were previously Identifled as leases unger Ing AS 17.

b The lmpact of adoption of Ing AS 116 on Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 is not significant.

34 Contingant Uablifthes

As at Asat
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Tax matters in dispute under appes! 6.31 163
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35 Assety and Habiltles rekating to Employes Benefity

Sse aecounting policy in Note 1.(p)
For datalls about the related amployee benefit axpenses, see Note 29

A. Definad Contribution Man:

The Company's defined contribution plans are superannuation, employees stats Insurance schame 3nd provident vnd administered by Goverament since e Company has
n furthes obdigatlon beyond maklng the antributions.

The expenses recognised during the year towards defined contribution plans are as detailed below:

Particulars Yesr ended Yesr ended

- 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2013
Provident Fund and other Funds 1117 10.67
Tatgl (included In Note 33 - 'Contribution to graviden and other funads’ 137 1067

B. Defined Bensfit Gbligation:

The Company provides for gratuicy for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity ALt 1973 Compaay policy. Employess who are In continpos senvice Eor 2 perkod of 5
yeara or fmdre are eligible for gratuity. The ofg y peyeble on retlement/ cermiaation ks the employes’s bas? draam salsry pav month computad proporilomst efy
a5 per the Paymsent of Grawbty Agx, 1971 Company pollcy multdpliad for cthe number of years of service.

The plan asset for the funded gratvicy plan Is Invested in Insurer managed fund adminlszered by Uife nsurance Corporatioa of lada ("UCT), ndepeadentiy as per the
lavestment petrern stipulsted for Pension and Group Schemes fund by Indursnce Aegukatory snd Develp A Awthociky Regubationd e, 300% of phan ssi2i are lavested in
Insurer managed fund. Quoted price of the same i not avaliable In active market.

The results of the actuarial study for the obligation for employee benefits as computed by the actuary are shown below:

Gratuity Leave
Actuarial study analysis 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2029
Prindipal achuarial axommptions
Discount rate 5.65% 7.60% 6.55% 1.60%
Range of compensation increase 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal Rate:
- Younger eges 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
- Older ages B.00% S.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets - = g <
Plan duration - - - -
Gratuity Leave
Actuarial study analysis 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 Morch2020 31 March2019
Componants of ncoine statemant charge
Current service cost iz 2.54 196 124
Interest cost 2.08 173 - -
Recogaithon of past service cost - - . -
Immediats récognition of [gain)Mosses - - .
Sentlemant/eurtailment/termination loss - - - -
Total chai to statement of profit or ko 520 429 156 128
Totul charged to Retalned Kamings . .
Movements In net llabillty/{asset)
Net llabliity at the beginning of the yaar 25.00 23.00 3.96 2,68
Employer contributions - = = =
Total gxpense recognised In tha sistement of profit of loss 5.20 4.28 196 128
Total expense recognised In the Resined Farnings - - - -
Total smount recognised in OCI 285 0.70 - -
Net Bal #t tha end of the yesr 36.05 o0 592 3.9
Recondliation of benafit obligations
Obligation st start of the year 7.74 2.74 3.96 2.68
Current sarvice cost a2 2.54 1.96 128
Interest cost 108 1.7 - -
Benafits paid directly by the Group - - - -
Extra payments of expenses/(l ) : 5 - -
Obligation of past service co - - - -
Actusrtel loss 286 0.70 . .
Dafined banefits obiigutions et the end of the year pL%; ) b 5.52 A9
Re-man s ts of deftnad benafh plers
Acwartal gain/{loss) due 10 changes In demographic assumptions 0.01 N = -
Actuaral gain/(loss) Sue to chenges In finsnclal assumptions -2.39 041 - -
_ Arwiaral gainf{loss) on atcount of experience sdustments 048 -0.30 - -
Tom! scrimrial galn/{koss) recognisad In OCI ~2.86 0,70 - =

Totsl sctuarial galn/(koss) tecognised In Stytement of profit or loss 2 86 Q.70 - .




Semiﬂvlty analysis of significant asumpthons
ible changes a1 the reponing date 1o ona of the relevant acruarlal azsompidons, kolding olives ssremptiond consta, would have sffaciad the defined

benafic obllgatlun by the amounts shown below. Although the analysk does not taks atcount of the IVl diseThudion of cash flows axpeciad under the plaa, H does provide an
spproximacion of the senditivity of the ssaumptiond shown,

Gratuity
31 Mar 20 31Mar19

Sensitivity of DBO, Service Cost, and P&L Account % increase in DBO Liablity % Increase in DBO Liahility

Di rate

+ [1.5% discount rate -1 58X .76 L57% 2700
- 0.5% discount rate 3% 3743 3.79% 29.06
Salary Increase

+ 0.5% salary growth 3.74% 37.40 3.77% 29.08
+ 0. 5% salary growth A.57% .77 -3.60% 26.99
Withdrewa) rate

+ (1.5% salary growth 0.18% 3599 002% 2800
-0.55% salery growth 019% 35.12 L05% 799

Leave

Sensitivity of DBO, Service Cost, and P&L Account 31 Mar 20 31 Mar 19

Discount rate

+ 0.5% discount rate 56.72 380

- 0.5% digcount rale 5.19 434

Salary Increste

+ (1.5% solary growth 5.19 A.14
+ 0.5% salary growth 5.67 3.80
Whthdrzwal rete

+ 1.1 % satary growth 5.92 397

~ 1.3 % salary growth 593 3%

Ngte:

although the analysls docs adk rake apcount of the full Bistribution of cash flows sxpeted wmder the plan, ikt docs provide an sppromimation of Lhe scasttivity of the
sssumptions shown,

The estimates of luture sBlbry ingreases considersd in actuanal viluaton Cakes into sccoum Lalistion, senlonty, promotion and other rebevant Factors 35 supply aad desmaad
In tha amplaymant markat,
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36 Related party dischosures as per Ind A5 24

1j Related partles with whom transactions have taken place during the year and its relationship:

Name of the related parties Designation / Relationship
Rajendra Singh Sharma Key Management Personnel
Ashok Xumar Guptz Xey Management Personne)
Goving Singh Mehtz Key Management Personnel
Pranav Agarwal independent Meector
Shweta Agarwal Independent Direcros
Anand Swarup Agarwal Promoter

Sanju Agarwal Relative ro Promoter

Vishal Swarup Agarwal Relatlve to Promoter
Vishwas Swarup Agarwal Relatlve to Promoter
Mahandra Swarup Agarwal felative to Prormoter
Pramod Swarup Agarwal Relative to Promoter

Sudha Agarwal Relative to Promoted

1 Trarsactions during the year

(AN ammounts in millions, unless atherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Remuneration
Rajendra Singh Sharma 0.60 055
Ashok Kumar Gupta 1A7 1907
Govind Singh Mehta 0.08 0.08
Pranav Agarwal 0.04 0.04
Shwets Agarwal 0.04 0.04
Professlonal Fees - -
Ashak Kumar Gupta 12.00 12.00
Smit Sanju Agarws| 0.30 030
Vishal Swarup Agarwal 12.00 1200
Vishwas Swarup Agarwal 12.00 32.00
Shri A S Agarwal - -
Mahendra Swarup Agarwal 0.60 -
Pramood Swarun Agarwal 0.60 -
Sudha Agarwal 0.30 -
Rant Expansa - -
Vishal Swarup Agarwal 0.54 054
Balmb t of m . -
Vishal Swarup Agarwal 1.20 1.20
Interest on Unsacurad Loan - -
Mahandra Swarup Agarwal 127 =
Pramood Swarup Agarwal 0.83 -
Sudhe Agarwal 0.60 -
TOTAL 4457 39.80

3 Outstanding balancas as at the year end
{All amounts in milfions, unfess otherwise stated]

As at Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Unsecured Loans
Mahendra Swarup Agsrwal 1169 11.69
Pramod Swarup Agarwal 1.70 7.20
Sudha Agarwal 5.54 554

4 Termsanrd conditions of runsactions with related parties
The transactions with related partles are made on terms squivalent to those that prevellin 2am’s lengih transactions. There have been no
gusrantees provided or recelved for any related party receivables or payables. Mo balances in respect of the related paniles has been provided for
wiltten off / written back, except what i< stated above,

Related party relayionship 15 35 1gentified by the management and relizd upon by tive auditors.
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{i}_Other financhal gccats - - - 5054 3834 5014
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() Caih and cith equivalents . = - . B2 23
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AS st 31st Morch, 319
Mivastmieid - - a3y ] ) A0
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¥} Other Bal with Banks " B - 1112 1212 1212
Total A < LRGS0 1A8T1 [
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Towl . s =1 5230
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T ooy - [0 35036 S5a36
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As at 1st April, 2018 Lavell Level2 Leveld Total
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38 Segment Reporting

The Vice Chalrman & Managlng Director & CEO, and Executive Director & CFO are identifled as Chief Operating Declslon Maker of
the Company. They are responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments.

Accordingly, they have determined “Agro Chemilcals” as Its operating Segment.

Thus the segment revenue, interest revenue, interest expense, deprecistion and amortlsation, segment assets ang segment

liabilities are all as reflected In the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Geographical Information

Year ended
31st March, 2020

a. Revenue from external customers

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Asat
01st April, 2018

attributed to the Company's country of domiclle, India 1,800.34 1,694.64 1,654.46
attributed to all foreign countrles 2,979.24 1,707.96 875.45
Total 4,779.59 3,402.60 2,529.90
b. Revenues from transactions with a customers exceeding 10% of the Company’s 1,403.94 1,009.60 $69.66

sales in current as well as previous year.

As at As at As at

¢. Non-current assets (excluding Deferred/ Current Tax and Financial Assets) 31stMarch, 2020  31stMarch, 2019  O1st April, 2018
located In the Company’s country of domiclle, India 1,006 750 718
located in all foreign countries - - -

Total 1,006 750 718
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3% Income Tax
This note provides an analysls of the group's income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised drectly in equity and how the tax expense I5 aflected by non-
assessable snd non-deductible rems. ([t also explains significant estimates made In raltefion 1o the Company's [8x positions.

Year ended Year ended

Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

(i) Tax expense recognised In the statement of profit and loss

Current Tax on profits for the year 23111 170400
Adjustiments for current tax of prlor pariods - -
Total Curent Tax Expansa 231.11 170.00
Deferred Tax charge/ (credit) p&L (2.09) 1.78
{Decrease) Increase In defarred tax llablittias - -
Total Beferred Tax Expanse {2.09] 1.78
Income tax expensa recognised In the statement of profit and loss 225.02 171.79
(ll) Tax expensa recognised In CLI
Deferred Tax:
Deferrad Tax expense on Remeasurement of defined benefit plans {0.72) {0.20}
Income tax expensa recognised In the statement of profit and loss (0.7z] {0.20)
Year ended Year ended
e 31stMarch, 2020  31st March, 2019
(b} Reconcillation of tax expanse and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:
Enacted income tax rate In Indi2 applicable to the Company {in %} 25% 20%
Profit/ {Loss) before income tax expense 833.70 610.99
Current tax expanse on Profit/ (loss) before tax expenses at enacted Income tax rate in Indla 235.01 177.92
Tax offects of
Tax effect on non-deductible exp 18.67 10.67
Effect of Income which Is taxed at specloi rétes {0.19) {0.60}
Effect of Income that Is axampted from tax {0.08] {0.04}
Effect of difference in WDV of Assels (37.17] (28.38)
Qther ltems 6.44 {7.30)
Total
Income tax expanse 222.68 152.26
Consequent to reconciliation items shown above, the effective tax rate Is 23.85% (Previous year: 24.97% }.
The detalls of Income tax Assets / Liabllities are as follows:-
Particulars e A nt
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Incosme Tax Assets - -
Current Income Tax Liabjiltles 8.51 .16
Net Current Income Tax Assets at the end of the year ] 3

The major companents of deferred tax {llabiltties)/aesets arking on accourt of timlng ditfesances are as foliows:



As at 31st March, 2020

Particulars Balance sheet  Profit and loss 0c! Balance sheat
1"April 2029 19-20 19-20 31st March 2020
Daferred Tax Liabilitias
Arising on account of:
Differance betwaen wiitten down value/pltal work In 73.28
progress of fixed assets as per the books of accounts and
Income Tax Act, 1961 7264 0.64
Increase in borrowing cost pursuant to application of effective interest rate 2,60 {0.04) 1.56
Provision for Employee Defined Benefit obligations 3.17 {1.40) 0.72 245
Provision for Compensated Absences 0.42 0.43) 0.01
Deferred Tax Assats
Arlsing on account of:
Leass liability amorisation - {0.03) (0.03)
Allowanceas for Doubtful debt and Advances {2.23) {0.87) 2.7
Difference in carrying valug and Tax base of invesiments measursd at VTP (0.14} {1.42) {1.56)
Totzl 75.85 {3.53) 0.72 73,05
As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars Balance sheet Profit and loss ol Balance sheet
1*Aprii 2018 18-19 1819 31st March 2019
Deferred Tax Uablitties
Arlsing on account of;
Difference betwean writtan down valug/capital work in T84
progress of fbted assets as per the books of accounts and
Incorne Tax Act,1961 68.66 399
Borrowlng (Bosrowing Cost Ind AS Impact} 409 {1.49) 2.60
Provision for Gratulty 3.08 {0.12) 0.20 117
Provision for Compensated Absences (.68 {0.26) .42
Acturial Gain floss - - -
Provision for Proposad divislon - - »
Duferred Tex Assets
Arlsing on sccount of:
Lease liabillty amorisation - - -
Provision for ECL for Trade receivable {2.20) {0.63) {283}
Falr waluation of Investment 10.04) {011} (o148}
Total 74.27 1,38 0.20 75.85
As at D1st April, 2018
Particulars Balance sheet  Profit and loss Oci Balance sheat
1"April 2017 17-18 17-18 31st March 2018
Deferred Tax Liabllities
Arising on account of:
Difference between written down value/capital work In 68.56
arogress of fived assets as per the books of accounts end
Income Tax Act,1961 658.66
Borrowing (Borrowing Cost Ind AS Impact) 4.09 4.09
Proviston for Gratulty 2.80 0.28 3.08
Provision for Compensated Absences 0.58 0.68
Acturlal Gain floss
Pravision for Proposed division
Deferred Tax Astets
Arlsing on account of:
Lease liabllity amorisation - -
Provision for ECL for Trade recaivable {2.20) {220}
Fair valuation of Investment {0.04) (0.04}

Total 68.66 533 0.28 7422




INDLA PESTICIDES LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements (Contd,)

40 Earnings per share [EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year sttributable to equity holders of the Company by the welghted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

| Profit attributable to Equity holders of Company

Particulars o Ardh Arat
31" March, 2020  31* March, 2019 1st April, 2018

Profit attributable to equity share holders of the Company for basic and

diluted eamings per share 70,78,34,681 43,92,03,322 32,80,62,312

I Weighted average number of ordinary shares

As at As at

Particulars

31" March, 2020 31" March, 2019

Equity shares outstanding as at year end 3,18,325 3,18,325 3,18,325
Weighted average number of shares as at year end for baslc earnings per

shares 3,18,325 3,18,323 3,18,325
Weighted average number of shares as at year end for diluted earnings

per shares 3,1{,3 25 3,1&1,325 3'151*_3 25
Basic eamings per share 2,223.62 1,379.73 1,030.59
Dlluted earnings per share 2,223.62 1,379.73 1,030.59

{*not annualised)
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INDIA PESTICIDES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.)

43 First-time adoption of Ind AS
The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, in accordance with Ind AS for the first time. For the periods
upto and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous
GAAP). Accordingly, the Company has prepared its financial statements to comply with Ind AS for the year ending March 31, 2020, together
with comparative information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In
preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening Balance Sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2018 i.e. the transition date to Ind AS
for the Company. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Previous GAAP financial statements,
including the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018, and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

0]
(i)

(i)
(iv)

Optional Exemptions

Deemed Cost

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets recognised as of 1st April, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its
deemed cost as of the transition date.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a leses. According to Ind AS 116, this assessment
should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and
assessed all arrangements based on conditions in place as the date of transition.

Applicable Mandatory Exceptions

Estimates:

On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no
necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that
were required under Ind AS but not required under Previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting
conditions existing as at that date.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities as required by Ind AS 109 is applied prospectively i.e. after the transition date.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets:
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the
date of transition to Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets

The Compnay has applied exception related to impairment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. It has used reasonable and
supportable information that is available without under cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial assets were
initially recognised and compared that to the credit risk at April 1, 2018 [ April 01, 2017 proforma transition date)

Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101:

Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 (Transition Date)

A. Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019

B. Reconciliation of Statement of total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2019
Reconciliation of Equity as at April 1, 2018 and March 31, 2019

Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows

The presentation requirements under Previous GAAP differs from Ind AS and hence Previous GAAP information has been regrouped for
ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. The Regrouped Previous GAAP information is derived from the Financial Statements of the Company
prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP.



INDAA PESTICIDES LIMITED
Notes to the Ananclal Statements {Contd.)

L Reconclllation of Balance sheet as at Aprll 01, 2018 (Amt. in Mn)
Regrouped Ind AS ind AS
Previous GAAP adjustments
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment GH7.86 - BR7.86
Right of Use Assets 24.95 - 24.95
Capital work-in-progress - - -
Intanglble Assats i - 221
Intangible Assets under development 258 - 2,55
Financial Assets z = =
Investments 33.12 {o.11) 33.02
Gther Financial Assets 33.48 - 38.48
Other Non-current assets 0,12 8.90 9,02
Total Non current assets 789.29 8.79 798.09
Qurrant Assats
Invantories 19221 . 192.21
Financial Assets - -
Trade Receivables 1,254.18 {6.37} 1,247.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents 23.52 = 2452
Other Balances with Banks 1136 - 1136
Other Financial Assets 0.22 11.44 11,67
Other Current Assats 119.00 - 119.00
Total Current Assets 1,600.38 5,07 1,605.55
Total Assets 2,389.77 1387 2,402.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 31.83 - 31.83
Other Equlry 1,389.06 18.27 1,407.32
Total Equity 1,420.89 18.27 1,439.16
UABIUTES
Non-Current Liabllities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 67.82 {0.26) £7.56
Other Financlal Liabllltles - - -
Provisions 2.47 247
Deferred Tax Liabliitles {Net) 68.66 5,61 74.27
Total Non Current Liabilities 138.94 5.36 144.30
Current Liabliities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 325.51 - 325.51
Trade Payables - - -
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprise 15.72 - 15.72
Total outstanding dues of credlitors other than micro enterprises 35165 - 351.65
Other Financial Liabilities 91.88 {0.13) 91.75
Other Current Liabllities 10.47 {1.30) 2917
Provisions 8.54 {8.33) 0.21
Current Tax Liabitities (Net} 6.16 - 6.16
Total Current Liabilitles §29.94 {9.75) £20.18
Total Liabilitles 964,88 {4.40) 964.48
Total Equity snd Uabllities 2,389.77 13.87 2,403.64




NDLUA PESTICIDES LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements [Contd.)

Il.A Recondliation of Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019

{Amt. in Mn)

Regrouped ind AS
Previous GAAP adjustments jo A3
v :
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 697.60 - 697.60
Right of Usa Assats - - -
Capital work-in-progress A7 46 - 47 46
Intangible Assets 1.99 - 1.99
Intangible Assets under development 2,58 = 2.55
Financlal Assets
investments 31,32 {0.71) 30,62
Other Financial Assats 37.85 - 3785
Othar Non-current assets 10.72 9,20 19.91
Total Non current assets 829.45 8.49 837.98
Current Assats
Inventories 355.27 - 355.27
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 1,791.66 (8.52) 1,783.14
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16.30 - 16.30
Othar Balancas with 8anks 12.12 - 12.12
Other Financlal Assets 3.24 6.44 9.68
Other Current Assets 157.87 - 157.87
Total Current Assets 2,3356.46 (2.08) 2,534.38
“Total Assets
3,165.94 6.41 3,172.36
EQUITY
Equity Share Capltal 31.83 - 31.83
Other Equity 1,826.18 12.19 1,838.37
Total Equity 1,858.01 12,19 1,870.20
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabllities
Financlal Liabillties
Borrowings 112.73 {0.10) 112.64
Other Financial Liabilitles - - -
Provisions 3.66 3.66
Deferred Tax Llabllities {Net) - - -
Total Non Current Liabllitlas 72.64 3.21 75.85
1B9.04 3.12 192.15
Current Liabilitles
Financial liabilities
Borrowlngs 437.73 - 437.73
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of mlcro enterprises and small enterprise 17.37 - 17.37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 531.59 & 531.59
Other Financial Liablities 92.50 {0.16) 52.34
Other Current Liabillties 28.82 {1.30) 27.52
Provisions 7.73 (7.43} 0.30
Current Tax Llabilltles {Net} 3.16 S 3.16
Total Current Uabillties 1,118.89 {8.89) 1,110.00
Total Liabilities 1,307.93 {5.77) 1,302.16
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,165.94 6.41 3,172.36
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Notes to the Finaneial Staterments {Cantd.)

11.B. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 2019 (Amt. in Mn)
- Regrouped Ind AS
Particul Ind AS
bicanui Previous GAAP adjustments
Revenue from Operations 3,415.65 (8.77) 3,406.88
Other Income 53.49 0.05 53.54
Tatal income (1) 3,469.14 [8.71) 345042
EMPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 1,94534 - 1,945,34
Changes in inventorles of finlshed goods, Stock-In-trade and work-in-prog {74.41) - (74.41)
Employee Benefits Expense 134.58 {0.10} 134.48
Finance Costs 50.64 5.13 55.77
Depreciation and Amortlsation Expensa 3938 0.18 39.58
Othar Expenses 754.64 {5.96) 749.68
Total Expenses (I1) 2,850.18 {0.75) 2,849,43
Profit Before Tax (I-) 618,95 {7.96) £10.99
Tex Experge
{1) Current Tax 170.00 - 170.00
{3} Current taxes relating to earier years - - -
{2) Deferred Tax 3.98 (2.20) 1.78
Profit for the period 444 97 {5.78) 435.20

Other comprehensive Incoma
{l) Items that will not be reclassified to grofit or loss

- Rermeasurement of defined benefit plans - {0.70) {0.70)

- Income tax expense / (beneflt) related to items that will not be reda: - {020} {0.20)

Total Other comprehensive income {Net of Tax) - {0.50% {0.50}
Total Comprehansive Income for tha Year 44497 {6.26) 438.71
il Reconciliation of Equity (Amt. In Mn)

As at 31st March, As at O1st April,

Particulars Nate

2019 2018

Totsl equity under local GAAP 1,858.01 1,420,895
Adjustrments Impact: Galn/ {Loss)

Provision for expectad creidt loss B {8.52) 6.37)
Falr velugtion of financlal asset - Investments through | A {0.76) {0.11)
Fair valuation of financlal asset - Investments through / A 0.05 -
Increase In borrowing cost persuent to application of E £ .26 0.38
Raversal of proposed ordinary dividends payable F 7.66 7.66
Provision for Gratuity D 9.20 8.50
Provislon for Compensated Absences D 1.06 1.96
Interest subsidy recelvable H 6.44 1144
Deferred tax impact E (3.21) (5.61)
Total IND AS adjustment 12.19 1827
Total equity under Ind AS 187020 1,439.16
B  Reconciflation of Total Comprehensive Income (Amt. In Mn)
Year ended
Profit after tex undaer local GAAP 44497
Ad[ustrents Gain/ {Loss)
fetum on Investmant A (0.59)
Increase In borrowing cost persuent to application of Effectlve Interes [ {5.13}
Fair valustlon of financlal asset - Investments through FVTPL A (0.07)
Fair veluation of financial asset - investments through Amortlsed cost A 0.05
Deprecigtion, amortization and Impalment on immovable property {0.18)
Provislon for Gratuity D 1.00
Provision for Compénsated Absence E (0.90)
Other Expenses - Provision for expected credit loss 8 {2.15)
Deferred tax Impact 2.20
Totsl Adjustments (5.76}
Profit afier tax as per Ind-AS 435.20
Other comprahensive Income |net of taxes} G 0.50
Totsl comprehentlva income 22 per Ind A5 438.71

W On aocount of transitlon to Ind AS, thers |s no material adjustment to the Statement of Cash Fows for the yesr ended 315t March 2018
or 31st March 2048 (Praforma).



Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd.)
V  Notes to reconciliations:

A Investments
Under previous GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments in unquoted and quoted equity shares as investment
measured at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of investments.

Under Ind AS, financial assets representing investments in equity shares of other entities other than subsidiaries, joint venture and
associates have been fair valued. The Company has designated such investments as FVTOCI/FVTPL investments. At the date of transition
to Ind AS, difference between the instruments fair value and Indian GAAP carrying amount has been recognized as a separate
component of equity, in the FVTOCI reserve, net of related deferred taxes for investments measured at FVTOCI. Investments which are
measured at FVTPL, difference between the instruments fair value and Indian GAAP carrying amount should be recognized under Profit
& Loss.

B Trade receivables
Under Previous GAAP, the Company had recognised provision on trade receivables based on the expectation of the Company. Under Ind
AS, the Company provides loss allowance on receivables based on the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model which is measured following the
"simplified approach" at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at each reporting date.

C Borrowings
Under Previous GAAP, transaction costs in relation to borrowings were charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when
incurred. Under Ind AS, borrowings are recognised at fair value at the inception and subsequently at amortised cost with interest
recognised based on effective interest rate method.

D Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities
Under previous GAAP, the Company recognised remeasurement of defined benefit plans under Statement of Profit or Loss. Under Ind
AS, remeasurement of defined benefit plans are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

E Deferred Tax
Under Previous GAAP, deferred tax accounting was done using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between
taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Under Ind AS, accounting of deferred taxes is done using the Balance Sheet
approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax
base.

Pursuant to Ind AS requirements, credit for Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is reclassified as deferred tax assets. Under I-GAAP the same
was presented as part of taxes paid.

F Proposed dividend including dividend distribution tax
Under the previous GAAP, dividends proposed by the Board of Directors after the Balance Sheet date but before the approval of the
financial statements were considered as adjusting events. Accordingly, provision for proposed dividends including dividend distribution
tax was recognised as a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognised when the same is approved by the shareholders in the
general meeting. Accordingly, the liability for proposed dividend including dividend distribution tax of Rs. 63,66,500 as at 31st March,
2019 ( Rs. 63,66,500 as at 1st April, 2018) included under provisions has been derecognised.

G Other Comprehensive Income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in the year should be included in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year,
unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income or expense that are not recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
but are shown in statement of profit and loss as "Other Comprehensive Income™ includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans. The
concept of Other Comprehensive Income did not exist under previous GAAP.

H Interest Subsidy Receivable

Under the previous GAAP, the incentives from Government was accounted for on receipt basis. Under IND AS, the same has been accounted
for on accrual basis for which the income has been accounted for accordingly at transition date.

|  The previous year I-GAAP figures have been reclassified/regrouped to make them comparable with Ind AS presentation.
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